Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

Agenda
Governing School Board
Wednesday, March 13, 2019
4:00 p.m.

Office, Kashia School District

1. Call to Order Board and Staff/Establishment of Quorum
Glenda Antone Frances Johnson
Maxine Barboza Peter Tufele
Charlene Pinola Patti Pomplin
2. Approval of Agenda
3. Public Comment on Non Agenda Items (Limit 5 Minutes)
Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within in the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. The Board may limit
comments to no more than 5 minutes each pursuant to Board policy. Public comment will be allowed on each specific agenda item
prior to Board action thereon.
4. Communication
Shawna Shepley — CDE - J13a Denial
5. Consent Agenda
5.1  Approval of Minutes from February 13, 2019 and February 27, 2019
5.2  Approval of Warrants for February 2019
6. Reports and Communications
6.1  Governing Board Members
6.2  Superintendent
6.3 Teacher
6.4 Business Manager
6.5 PTO
7. Items Scheduled for Information and Discussion
7.1 Drinking Water for Schools Implementation Grant
8. Items Scheduled for Discussion and Action

8.1 Approve 2018-19 2nd Interim Report
8.2 Approve Updated 2018-19 School Calendar
8.3 Approve J13a for February 27-28, 2019 Power Outage/Slide
8.4 Approve Board Policies
BP 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests
BP 3300 Expenditures and Purchases
BP 3311 Bids
AR 3311 Bids
BP 3312 Contracts
AR 3516.1 Fire Drills and Fires
AR 3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System




Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

Kashia School District
Agenda March 13, 2019
Continued

BP 3516.5 Emergency Schedules

BP 3517 Facilities Inspection

BP 3530 Risk Management/Insurance
AR 3530 Risk Management/Insurance
BP 3600 Consultants

9. Items Scheduled for Future Board Meetings
9.1  Board Policies
9.2  Staff Handbook
9.3 Tentative 2019-20 Budget

10. Adjournment

Next Regular Board Meeting, Wednesday, April 10, 2019



CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT ToNY THURMOND
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF

OF EDUCATION PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

1430 N STReeT, SacRAMENTO, CA 95814-5901 ¢ 916-319-0800 ¢ WWW.CDE.CA.GOV

March 4, 2019

Frances Johnson, Superintendent
Kashia Elementary School District
P.O. Box 129

Stewarts Point, CA 95480-0129

Dear Superintendent Johnson:

Subject: Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions
(Fiscal Year 2018-2019), Form J-13A

The request for one emergency day on November 9, 2018, at Kashia Elementary is not
approved, due to confirmation from the school district that the school calendar includes
a built-in emergency day that was not utilized prior to submitting the request. Built-in
emergency days should be used for emergency closures when they arise. If additional
closures occur after the built-in emergency days have been used, a Form J-13A request
should be submitted to the California Department of Education for consideration.

A copy of this letter and Form J-13A have been emailed to all contact persons listed on
the form. If you have questions regarding this letter, please email
attendanceaccounting@cde.ca.qov.

Sincerely,

WAL

Caryn Moore, Director
School Fiscal Services Division

CM:at

cc:  Steven Herrington, County Superintendent of Schools, Sonoma County Office of
Education
Nick Schweizer, Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction, California
Department of Education



CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT ToNY THURMOND
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF

OF EDUCATION PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

1430 N STREET, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814-5901 ¢ 916-319-0800  WWW.CDE.CA.GOV

March 4, 2019

Frances Johnson, Superintendent
Kashia Elementary School District
P.O. Box 129

Stewarts Point, CA 95480-0129

Dear Superintendent Johnson:

Subject: Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions
(Fiscal Year 2018-2019), Form J-13A

The request for one emergency day on November 9, 2018, at Kashia Elementary is not
approved, due to confirmation from the school district that the school calendar includes
a built-in emergency day that was not utilized prior to submitting the request. Built-in
emergency days should be used for emergency closures when they arise. If additional
closures occur after the built-in emergency days have been used, a Form J-13A request
should be submitted to the California Department of Education for consideration.

A copy of this letter and Form J-13A have been emailed to all contact persons listed on
the form. If you have questions regarding this letter, please email
attendanceaccounting@cde.ca.qov.

Sincerely,

e

Caryn Moore, Director
School Fiscal Services Division

CM:at

cc:  Steven Herrington, County Superintendent of Schools, Sonoma County Office of
Education
Nick Schweizer, Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction, California
Department of Education



L | velL-r wiog

« PUNA 00UIS 8J81S 9y) WO JolIsIp 19040 ay] 0 Swawuoipodde jo Sussew
8y} 10 JeaA [eosy eyl oy aouepusyie Ajlep abaiene [enjoe ay) 6q o) paliaep &q jjeys souepusye Allep abelane PajewiSs al; JoUISIP YONS JO aouBpUBYE Ajiep abisnz oy} ajeinss jleys uononasuy agng
40 JuspuBLLIBINg By 'S|00YIS JO JuspusjuLadnS ALNod By pue 19LISID 8L 10 Di20q BUILIBACD 81 JO SIBQUIBLL BY} JO SYARPILE U] AQ UORONIISU IiQNd 40 JUBpUSIULIAUNS 84 JO LIRSS U] 0] UMOYS 3Q jeYs
108} Yolum ‘patepus. aq 0} JesA [2asy Aue 1oy 1DISIP 8y J0] souepua)E Alep ebeisne Lo Lodes Je4Nooe ue Joj ajgyssod i Bupew ‘peAossap Jo jsoj ussq aney J0Lsip Aue 10 SpI0da) Bouspuaye Aue 1BA3LUBYM,.
-16E9Y LOUO3S D3 0} Juensind spew S1 Jsanbal sty | 'SpI0JR! BOUBPUSHE JO LOI1oNJIS3P JO SSO| 3Y) 0) @np PaljLieA 8q JouLed
12 J0 N3] U 3duepulie pajewiise jo esn ay) Buyisanbay |aEgH UONISS 53 Ul paquosap se paAolsap o 1s0f UBBq BARY SPI0JS] BDUBPUSKE UBYM -SQY0J3Y IONVANILLY JIA0YLSIC HO LSO O

Jey) aouepus)

1senbal siu) i paleInosse Sajep aU) Buunp elLopIED J0 JOUKBAOS) By} Aq Aouabisw3 jo siers & jo uoneeosq 2 sem aisy | [

“Aouabiswa ayt o 1njeu 83 0) aNp pases:0sp AjjRUSIEL SEM SoUBpUSHE 1004s yoiys Buunp 5 uotjosS ) salep pue (s)joouos paquosap sy} o sieWwuoLodde

4407 Jo uoneindiwoo st ul souepuse o skep PajeLss By} JO BSN BZLSYINE [|IM jsanba) Sil 40 lerosddy ZEEGy UONDBS D3 4O SUOISIACID B LjiM 3OUEPIOITR U Si B0UBpUETIR 40 shep [enjoe 10} souBpUB)E

jo shep palewnss 1o UORNIISGNS Jo] 1saNbal 2U | ‘gz UOIBS '§ 1L 'HOD pue CBESY LONIBS 53 0} Juensind soUBpUaYE I 9SEBI08P [BLBIEW B PaUSLadXe JSanba aip ul papnjoul 1S 4023 12Ul MOUS ISNW J0LASID

[00UDS BU LIGIM SaILs {[E Jou Ing BJoW Jo SU Joj sisanba) 8Sea1a8p [BUSIE|\ "SOUBPUSIIE Ul 9SES198D [BLISIEW B peousliadxe BIOUM B SE JOUISIP [00UOS BU} 12U} S1BJISUOWAP JSNW IDLISIP [00YDS 24} LILM SBYIS [00YDS |f2 8pnjoul
1ey sisenba asealosp [eusiely “gzy UONISS 'S BN ‘HDD PUB ZEESY UOISS N3 o) 1uensind SOUBPUBYE L 95E8103D [BLIBjEW € paousliedxa Jng uado Jday a/am S|00UDS 810W 10 8UD USU :3SYINIIA IVINIIYN O

‘1sanbay st yim pajeinosse selep ay) Buunp eluoye?) 0 10UBA0S) a1 Ag Aouabiaw3 Jo aje)5 2 o Louklepe( € sem syl [
'D3S 13 '00ZSY
uolpag 3 o1 juensind skep asou) uo pasayo Aeinbai taaq arey pincA 1yl SSINUIL [BUOHONISU 84} pus shep au) Joj awi} [euonoNAsUI o] a0 uielge pue Ayeusd aiqeoidde noym (7gy Ly uoloseg 53 Jed) yay
J0 uoneindwoo ay) u! shep sy prebassip 01 37 ey sazpoyne 15snbal sw) jo [erosddy KousBlalus 51 40 Bimeu Su 0} anp ‘paysi] SBIEp BU} U0 PaSO[D asam (S)|00YIS Y J2Y: 1o8) 3y1 0} pIebal Jnouls (8)joouos
©U] Jo} g UONdBS Lt D3)IP3I 3L [BUONONJISUI pUR PRURIUIEW 3 PINOYS Suswuoipodde 4497 ‘ZzpLy UoRoes 53 Ut PQLI0S3D SUOKIPUOD 40 3SMEI3QY P3SO| A13M SJOOUIS BIOW O BUO UBUM :TINSOTI TOOHIS ] _
*1S3ND3Y SIHL 01 318V0ITddY (SINOILIGNDD :In 1dvd

_ S81IS [00YDS 307 19988 [ S3YS [00Y0S JOLISID 198188 [ _

| S3YIS |00Y2s 30D iy O $31IS 10042S 1OUISID Iy [&
_ :Bumolio} ay) 10 auo asooyy :Bumalio; ay) 10 UG BS00YY
T00HOS ¥3LHYHD O (300} NOILYDNAT 30 301440 ALNNOD O 10141510 T00HDS T |
(3811 y31 8u0 f[Uo 350043] 1SINDIY SIHL 0L 318V0ITddv NOILYIWSOANI 3LIS T00HDS NV 344l va 11 1974
Bio a00s@uosuyol]] 2896-58/-/0/ [edioutidauspusiuuadng UOSUYO[ Seduel ]
3 | “3NOHd 3L YN LOVINGD |
08¥S6 VO HUI0d SHEMBIS
3000412 31¥IS ALY
BWOUOS peoy buudg sbBeys 0Lgl¢ 6C1 X0g Od
3NN ALNNOD 1$S34aaY
61-8102 uosuyor seouel |
Y3A V0514 YN HOLYEISININGY 3O INIANIININTANS v
88801 5174 1UIsIg [00yoS Aejuswalg elysey]|
| (316vONddY 1) HIENAN HILNTHD 3005 15181810 3009 ALNNOD NN ¥3] |
(¥37) AON3DY T¥NOILYONAT 10T | Laivd

Wwioy siy} jo uoyadwod syl Buipebal uonetwsoju) oy T2 EL (T B CE D an0

W0} sl wqns pnoys Juawspnus (4497) gnuiio Buipund jonuon) [£007 71—y B Buyenoles jo asodind ai 1o} (yQy) souepuane Ajiep abessae luswuanoddy [ediould Jodas ey spoyos Ay e

'BZY UONISS "G BLL 400 Suopzinbay jo aped euoyen pue 2583y 'LEESY ‘N0ZSY ZZh LY $U0HYaS (93) 8p0s LoKLINP3 0) JUENSIN YPBI2 BWN |EUCHINASUI PUE SOUEPUALE 10 [erosdde wiglqo o pasn s LUOL SILE e
NOILYINYOANI LSINDIY ¥ NOILI3S

2102 ¥Y38W3030 O3SIATY "vEL- INHOA

; q g SNOILIGNOD AONIDHAWI OL INA IONVANILLY 40 IONYMO 1TV H04 1SANDIY
Sius B L v NOIL¥ONG3 40 INIWLHV43T YINJOLITYD

EISUADEED SEB AT SETL Je suonsanb payse Afjusnbals pue sucnionjsul su) ot ;1Y e

L

b



Z I vel-r wiog

SOA |ooyas te Jamod ON 3|gejiearun aiep - Aep | SL-¥L0Z | €£L0Z509 100Uas Aejuswa|3 elyses]
S3A 3PlIS pnul - 931) PSUMOP - [00LIS 18 Jamod ON 2102/01110 '2102/60/10 £1-910C | €£10ZS09 [0ouos Algjuawa|3 elysey
ON ‘Ayenb ne sjesun Apwayxe pasned sauy Aunod £102/0L/01 8L-LL0C | €10ZS09 joouss Apjusslg Biysay
ON/S3A sinenN $8)e(] ainso|) B9 [BOSI4 | 3p0Y [0OLIS aWeN |00yss o
patesy
Jayiesp
E| a J g

("sjduwexs ue 1oy SUOIONIISUI 841 01 18J3Y || UB Ul S[00UDS [|E 0] AIO1SH] 2Insojo 18

El
77 AMDLSIH 3¥NSG12 :lif 1¥Vd

L 810¢/60/1 1 8102/60/L L 0 @ 08t leuonipel] | €102509 loouds Atelusws|3 eysey
paisanbay sAe() | paisanbay sale( 8Jnso|) ainso|) Aauabiew3 Jo (s)ejeq 55 sAe(Q U ying lepuafe) adA] aiIs 3p07) [0043S ENENIEERS
JO J2qUINN felo ] Aouabisw3 ujing _ sheq Aouabiawy | joouog wi skeq

i H ) E| | E| _ a o) | Ed

10} s11sanbal sy §| "JEPUSIED [0CUOS 2 10 AdoD & yoeNY sanbal Sy} 10§ papaBU 512 SaUIY (| UBY) 3I0W Ji T5E

|
"188nbal sy} 0] JEPUS(ED J0DYOS JUBJBYIP OB Jo AJCD B udejle 'siepus|e [00L0s BULBLIP 9ABY SIS 2L pUS 'Saus [00UDS Sjdi|NL
100y ! yos Buuay ! IS [0y [

SR wicy 30%3 [elusus|ddns ay) 28N) NOILYINYOANI TOOHDS (Il L¥Vd

9jesun pasned Yyoiym ax4 AJunod sxng oyi 0} enp suompuod Ajenb se Jood pue axows Aresy auy) anp Aep suo pas0|0 Jo1)SIp |00YoS ay |

‘IIelS pue sjuspnis ayj Joj suowipuod Buiyiesiq

payoeny (s)ebed jejuswsiddng [
(D uonoag o3 paanold) sjqesyjddy JoN ]

("liese0 W 2qu0sag) AONIDYAWT 40 JUNLYN i EE_
JFHNSOTD TOOHIS ‘d NOILO3S

£102 4383030 J3SIATL VEL-T WHOS
SNOLLIONOD AONIOY3W3 0L 3Nd IONVANILLY 40 IONVMOTTY ¥04 1S3NDIY
NCILYON03 40 INIWLHVEIT YINYOLTYD




¢ | veL-r wiog

YIS {SSN) j00yas jews Asessaoep e jo asen ayj up 4o Aausbiouia jo slels & salejoap Jowsnob sy

UeiyrA Jd80xe $58).10 %06 29 pinoys sayyent,

000 000 00°0 el
00°0 %000 ‘
000 %000 —
00°0 %00°0 _
000 %000 _ |
]
000 %0070 _ _..
()] D/} ssaq SINoH Adouablaw3 10 aje( 30UBpUANY JELION, SINOH SJUEPUANY ,[BULION, 3p9D) [0OYDS SWEN (00425 |
SINOH JO 3SB3IOU| 13N 10 9,06 Jaulend S0UBpUaLY |enjoy Buiuwisieq Joj pasq sieq |
H 9 4 3 a ) g ¥ _
("souepuale 2o, jo UoUleD BU) BUIpn[oul Loy 2y} BURB[GWOD UO UoIeWIolu! Jof suoidnisul auy o} Jsiay “Isenbial SIy] 1o} pspasU aUe sau))
G wey} sjow y 23z 3|} [80X3 [ejusius|ddns BY1 8sn "sinoy uj soUBpUBYE 8! 8pInold) STOOHIS HOIH NOLLVNINILLNOD ¥0O4 NOLLYTNO YD 3Sv3INIA TYIHIALYIN I Lavd
000 0 000 _._m_ﬁ
000 %000 . _.
000 %000 . |
000 %000 - _ l
000 | %000 - _ _
000 %000 - _ _
7 000 | %000 = _ i
| 00°0 [ %000 = _ |
_ 000 | %000 - _
000 | %000 -
000 . %000 . _
{4-D) sAeq] wawuooddy | {(D74) ssa] 3ouepualy [enjay | Aousblaw3 1o e 30UEpUaNY ,|BUION, (Aemusacg) apoy [ooYIs alwep |00u2g
10 8seay] 1aN 10 94,06 Jaleny Buiuusieq 10} pasn sajeq 20UBPLALY [BWION, _
|
H | +9 4 3 I a ) _ 8 _ 3 _
("sduepusye Jewlou, jo uoitisp ay) Bupnjoul w.ist 54y Bunajdwos o

UORBLUIOJL! JO} SUOKONSUF BY! 0} Jajey “Isenbal siy Jo) pspasu 38 $au| §| Uzy) aiow |i 7

TR 12 8l 803 [eIUsWSiddNs By} 8SN) NOILYIND TV ISYINOID TYINIALYI 1 1yvd

payoeny (s)ebed jejuswajddng ]
(@ uonoag 03 paaooid) sjqesiiddy JoN [5]

(llerep ul 8GuosaQ) AONIDYIWS 40 JUNLYN °I LHvd
3SY3YI3A TVINILYI D NOILO3S

£102 4383230 GISIATY “vELT WHOS
SNOILIONOO ADNIDYIT OL INA IONVANILLY 40 IONYMOTIY HOS 1SINDIY
NGILYINAZ 50 INIWLEYIIA YINYOSITYD



¥ | veL-r wuo4

_
('Splogal Jo 8oUBSqe au} ul BoUBpUSTE BIEWIISE O SPI0OB) BOUBPUSNE 10NUISUGIS] O} [2S000.3 34} MOJaq 20115550) 1¥S0d0dd il Lavd

{"'pafo1isap 0 J50[ SPIODAI JO JUBIX3 PLUE SBOUBISWINOLD Majed BaU0Se7) SIONVLSWNOHEID 1l Luvd
Ylm SeoUBLIWED SPIode) pakoisap 10 150] Bl AQ paiared pouad aulua 2y 1 1SINDIY 40 AOMNId | L¥Vd

SQY¥0I34 IONVANILLY 03A0H1S30 ¥O 1501 :d NOILO3S
£10Z 4393030 a3SIATY 'VEL-N WHO4

SNOILIGNOO AONISHINW3 OL INA FIONVANILLY 40 JINVMOTTV ¥04 183nD3Y
NOILYONJ3 40 LNIWLHVYH3A VINHOLTYD

Buipnjour pue o) dn

(3 uonoag 03 paaoigd) sjqedpiddy joN 3]




S| veL-r wiog

Bio-s00s®so|nss U3 GE9Z-vZG-/0/ *'™d mialeg [BISIH [eulaxg ‘Jojoaag ML Sollis Asjlayg  Bwen
‘uonaas siy) uns|dwos Joj 3jqIsuodsal [ENPIADUASEILCS F07)
(aimeubig) (Bwen)
BILIOHED ‘Auno) BUWIOUOS 0 S43 ._Owom‘__ﬁ_ = so|ng >w=m£w 'SSAUAN
W7o, 10 >mu SIY) ‘SW 2J0j2q (PSLLIYE (0) UIOMS DUE DIGLIOSGNS
Sige AT 0

(zmeudis) (swen)

cOEcE@I usnlg [(eaufiisap 10) s|00ydS JO JuspusILLRANS AlUNO?)
‘Jo19q pue aBpejmouy Aw 40 153 By} 0} 1084102 plie an ale sanbal BuIoBaIo) BU) Y PAUIBILOD SIUBWAIE]S PUB LCHZULOMI BY1

STO0HIS 40 LNIANILNRITFANS ALNNCI 0 LIAVAIASV ‘li} Lvd

{2:njeubis) {awen)

suey y37 buizuowny ‘(ssubisap Jo) juspusiuuadng

{sisanbay [00yos sapewd o) aigeaydde AUO) YIZIYOHLNY TOOHIS ¥ILUYHI 40 LNIANILNINIANS AT TYACHdAY Il 1yVd

Vi

810z YequageQ

{=injeubis) {Swen)

\J%N \.&M.~\_g 'SSBUIM

sy mE 310187 (PSWAILE 10) UIOMS PUR DBQUISNS
yiel

"JIABPUJE SIY) 8}n33%8 |[BYs pleoq Buiussaob ayy jo sisquiaw ayy jo Aiofew e jses) 1y

euioyed funog ewouog JuspIsald pieog M

jo Aep

B|OUI4 BusjieyD

BZOQieg SUIXE

3UOJUY BpUS|D)

SallEN Sioquialy pJeog

'SPJNJ3J [BIDIYO UO PASBQ 248 PUE anJ} aue marm_._.._wﬁmw BuoBaioy auy 12y (waiye Km.m.sm Agasay 1011SI(] |o0Y2S amwcwgm_m BIYSEY 10 pieoq Butuaaof sy 1o Auoiew e Bupmnsuco sisqusw ‘ap

153Nb31 e |- SiU $53001d 0] paleldwoo 3 isnuw mojaq Suoes Sjgedlidde )y — SIGWIW QYOS DNINYIAOD TOOHIS ¥ILUVHD ¥O ‘NOILYINGS 40 391440 ALNNOD ‘LIIMLSIA TOOHIS 30 LIAVAIA4Y 1 Luvd
LIAVQI44V :3 NOILO3S

4102 Y438W3D30 03SIATYE YELT WHO4
SNOILIONOD ADNIDYH3W3 01 3NA IDNVANILLY 40 IONYMOTIV 404 LSINDIY
NOILVINAT 40 INFWLEYDIG YINHOLITYD



KADHIA UNIUN ELEMENIARKY SLHUUL

MASTER CALENDAR
2018-2019
LEARLY RELEASE EVERY WEDNESDAY
M|l T|w]|TH] ¥ Ml T |w]ruf[r
JULY o | JANUARY 18 |
2 3 4 5 64-Holiday-Independence Day 1 2 3 4 |2-4 Winter Break
9 10 11 12 13 7 8 9 10 11 {7 - School Resumes
16| 17 18 19 20 14 15 16 17 18
23 24 25 26 27 21 22 23 24 25 |21-Hollday-Martin Luther King ©
30 31 28 29 30 31
AUGUST g | FEBRUARY 15 |
1 2 3 1
6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 B|18-Holiday-President's Day.
13| 14| 15 17 16- Staff Returns 11) 12| 13| 14| 15[19-Holiday-Lincoln's Day Altern:
2001 21} 22 23 24 22 swtents newra 18| 19 20 21| 22|18-22-President's Weck
27| 28 291 30| 31 25 26 27 28
SEPTEMBER 18 | MARCH 20 |
3 4 5, 6 7 |3+ Hal|day-Labor Day i
10 11 12 13 14 4 5 6 7 8
17 18 19 20| 21|21 - Native American Day 11 12 13
24| 25| 26| 27 28 18 19 20
25| 26| 27 129-Storm Day
OCTOBER 23 —I APRIL 17 I
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5
8 9 10 11 12 8 9 10 11 12
151 16| 17| 18| 19 | 150 A6l 17] 18] 1915-19-Spring Break
22| 23 24| 25 26 22 23 24| 25 26
291 30 Hil 29 30
NOVEMBER 16 | MAY 21 |
1 2 1 2 3
5 6 7 8 9 6 7 8 9 10
12 13 14 15 1612-loliday-Veteran's Day 13 14 15 16 17
19 20 21| 22| 23]19-23-Holiday No Students,Teachers, or 10 Mo, 20 21 22 23 [f 24-Storm Day
26 27 28 29 30]22-23-Holiday-Thanksgiving & Admissions Day| 27 28 29 30 27-Haollday-Memorial Day
DECEMBER 14 | JUNE 10 |
3 4 5 6 7 3 4 5 6 7
10) 11| 12| 13| 14 10f 131 12 13|08 Jd]14-Last bay of School
17 18 19 20 21 ]25-Holiday-Christmas Day 17 18 19 20 21
24| 25| 26] 27| 28|21-31-winter Break 24| 25| 26| 27| 28
g
WORK AND/OR PAID DAYS HOLIDAYS [storm Days: 1 schaol is canceled
Total Work Days 110 Mo. ]Certificntcd ] 184 10 Mo, 10 te to hazardous conditions, 3/29 & 5/24
12 Mo | 1L Wil be used as o make-up day,
K-5 Holtday D.O 12 IEno schaol days are canceled, 3/29 & 5/24
TRIMESTER ENDS Stall Development will be nen-school days
First 60  [November 16 First Day ol School
Second| 64 [March 15 R st Dy i necessary MIDDLE SCHOOL TOTAL STUDENT
Third 56 |June 14 QUARTER ENDS DAYS
First 42 |November 180
180 Second| 38 [March
Third 44 |June 14
Foarth| 56 Board Adoptlon: 05/09/2018

180




111evevio Air Monitoring Data

o= BAY AREA AIR QUALITY
T MANAGEMENT DiIsTrICT @

CAEALTEY BREATHING EHIRODEMER T (500, i) by AL < Rl Gl ]

Jistricl (/) 1 About Air Qualily (fabout-air-qualily) / Current Alr Qualily {fabout-air-quality/currenl-alr-qualily) / Air Monitoring Dala

Air Monitoring Data

This page provides access to current and historical air quality and meteorological information based on

measurements taken at stations in the Air District’s air monitoring network. Some of the data on these pages
is raw or unchecked data that may contain errors.

. Refresh this page to view the current day. [fabout-air-
Measurement: PM2.5 quality/current-air-quality/air-monitoring-clata)

>M2.5 (http:/www.sparetheair.org/Stay-Informed/Particulate-Matter.aspx) is a term
‘or fine particulate matter pollution. PM2.5 is primarily a problem in the wintertime
n the Bay Area, when wood burning constitutes the major source,

Vlonthly AQI Summary B l Lo i
Ir Quality evels o

zach cell shows the AQI value for that day, based on the 24-hour average _ Index Health
oncentration. The far right column shows the highest daily AQI value for the . (AQI) Values Concern
month.

“this time, PM2.5 measurements at the Napa Valley College location are for
rmational purposes only.

Northern Zone
Stations November, 2018

Days 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1M 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Napa -

Napa 30 30 24 26 23 27 27 88 120 159 147 158 161 135 170 183 479 171 161 125 58 18 10 11
Valley
College

San Rafael 26 32 31 40 29 25 30 88 110 166 158 159 163 166 181 218 184 161 170 138 45 2 4 10

- r——— - - - ) — - =
Sebastopol 6 13 2 5 12 4 22 163 226 209 156 168 172 131 153 168 160 149 152 133 52 4 5 1

- —

5 45 51 38 27 155 72 160 165 171 165 157 186 247 186 166 169 158 103 19 17 23
~oast & Central Bay
Stations November, 2018

http:/lwww.baaqmd.gov/aboul-air-quaIity/currenl-air-qualily/air-moniloring-data?DalaViewFormal=monthly&DalaView=aqi&StartDate=11/9/2018&Para... 1/2



11/29/2018 Air Monitoring Data

Days 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 16 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

goredY 37 a4 57 54 53 87 162 178 163 165 158 164 198 216 176 153 166 154 50 23 22 28
k

Laney 39 42 38 52 38 41 39 79 157 177 167 165 160 169 202 219 177 157 167 155 49 10 11 19

College

Oakland 35 48 45 40 37 32 44 92 168 174 163 165 153 165 203 222 184 156 170 136 39 16 12 17
East

Oakland 58 65 52 52 49 83 118 180 167 167 162 164 199 220 178 156 168 154 46 14 15 23
West
San

Francisco- 47 50 49 46 42 46 52 76 156 172 167 165 164 173 197 228 158 151 174 156 65 10 14 16
Arkansas )
St.

SanPablo 37 41 32 49 32 27 24 125 117 168 160 160 152 162 196 245 183 160 176 141 63 21 12 14
- Rumrill

zastern Zone
Stations November, 2018

Days 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
20 26 22 29 11 18 22 73 76 167 159 169 133 152 184 230 210 176 173 157 89 9 4 8
Concord

'ﬁ‘%‘i’(’)?fre' 18 32 24 21 23 14 18 56 161 160 154 162 138 186 193 223 191 176 156 153 76 7 3 11

Ave.

Pleasanton 32 40 30 38 37 26 30 63 158 165 157 160 151 165 193 215 191 173 162 156 83 7 5 9
MNwens Ct

South Central Bay
Stations November, 2018

Deys 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Redwood 32 48 30 40 31 31 44 61 165 169 152 159 142 157 185 183 159 153 154 125 37 14 8 13
City

Santa Clara Valley
Stations November, 2018

Days 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Gilroy 20 32 24 31 28 12 20 36 128 166 128 103 105 137 173 158 134 154 132 90 32 12 4 6

SanJose- 43 53 54 55 52 53 56 65 162 172 153 155 153 164 191 190 166 162 160 149 36 21 16 28
Jackson St.

SanJose- 27 42 40 45 39 42 46 57 161 172 153 154 146 160 186 194 169 162 159 150 26 12 '8 .21
Knox Av

htlp://www.baaqmd.gov/about-air-quaIity/current-air-quaIil'y/air-monitoring-data?DalaViewFormat=monthly&DataView=aqi&StartDate=11/9/2018&Para... 212



(&< Sonoma County
":;:.'-'@ Office of Education

5340 Skylane Boulevard
Santa Rosa, CA 95403-8246
(707) 524-2600 | scoe.org

December 17,2018

Steven D. Herrington, Ph.D.

Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools
5340 Skylane Blvd.

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Tom Torlakson

State Superintendent of Instruction
1430 N St.

Sacramento, CA 95814

Letter in Support of J-13 Waivers for Sonoma County School Districts Impacted by Air
Quality

Dear Superintendent Torlakson,

Between Friday, Nov. 9, 2018 and Friday, Nov. 16, Sonoma County was impacted by
hazardous smoke conditions from the Camp Fire in Butte County. These hazardous conditions
forced numerous school districts within the county to close.

This letter is to advocate on behalf the attached J-13 waiver for school closures during that
time period. Decisions to close based on based on a combination of concern over air quality
in their area of the county and the conditions of local facilities. | support these districts’ efforts
to safeguard student health and wellbeing.

Sincerely,

Steven D. Herringt
Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools

Steven D. Herrington | Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools
Board of Education | Gina Cuclis, Herman G. Hernandez, Peter Kostas, Andrew Leonard, Lisa Wittke-
Schaffner






Kashia School District
Minutes
Board Meeting, February 13, 2019

=

Meeting called to order at 4:22 by Board President Pinola
Roll Call: Trustee Glenda Antone, Trustee Charlene Pinola
Absent: Trustee Maxine Barboza

Staff: Frances Johnson, Patti Pomplin, Peter Tufele
Community: None

2. Approval of Agenda: Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone to
approve the agenda as presented.

3. Public Comment on Non Agenda Items: None

4. Communication
State of California Roster of Public Agencies
Clerk-Recorder-Assessor (need to add Trustee Antone’s mailing address)
SCOE’s Approval of 1t Interim Report

5. Consent Agenda
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone to approve the consent
agenda as presented.
5.1 Approved Minutes from January 9, 2019
5.2 Approved Warrants from January 2019
5.3 Approved Consolidated Applications January 23, 2019 Reporting

5.4 Approved 2017-18 Audit Certification

o

Reports and Communications

6.1 Governing Board — Trustee Pinola would like the school to look into student
achievement and attendance awards.

6.2 Superintendent — went to superintendent/board dinner although road was
hazardous; board member boot camp is on February 234; speaker Martin —
a motivational speaker was at school today; no school next week February
18th through 2204; Sister Linda helping with reading intervention; volunteers
are currently Bob with cultural arts studies, two sisters and Susan Hamlin are
helping with reading, and Mary Vischer is mentoring student math.

6.3 Teacher — sees a significant change with students receiving extra help;
students ready for a week off; steelhead project will be happening like last
year.

6.4 Business Manager — was able to do Form 700 online; will be taking a vacation
from the 16th through 20th; attending lots of meetings.

6.5 PTO — None

7. Items Scheduled for Information and Discussion
7.1 Second Reading Board Policies
BP 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests



BP 3300 Expenditures and Purchases
BP 3311 Bids
AR 3311 Bids
BP 3312 Contracts
AR 3516.1 Fire Drills and Fires
AR 3516.3 Earthquake Emergency Procedure System
BP 3516.5 Facilities Inspection
BP 3530 Rick Management/Insurance
AR 3530 Risk Management/Insurance
BP 3600 Consultants

7.2 Current Salary Schedules
Review only, no action taken.

8. Items Scheduled for Discussion and Action
8.1 Approve 2018-19 Auditor Contract
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone and passed
unanimously by the board to approve the 2018-19 auditor MOU with
Stephen Roatch Accountancy as presented.
8.2 Approve School Accountability Report Card
Moved by Trustee Antone, seconded by Trustee Pinola and passed
unanimously by the board to approve the 2017-18 SARC as presented.
8.3 Approve Calendar Change for Power Outage on January 17, 2019
Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone and passed
unanimously by the board to use May 24th as a makeup school day for the
January 17, 2019 power outage.

9. Items Scheduled for Future Board Meetings.
9.1 Board Policies
9.2 Staff Handbook
9.3 2nd Interim
9.4 LCFF

10. Meeting Adjourned at 5:16

Next Meeting
Regular Board Meeting, Wednesday, March 13, 2019 at 4:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted: Patti Pomplin

Signed: 271/ [ J=F»

Glenda Antone, Clerk




Kashia School District
Minutes
Special Board Meeting, February 27, 2019

1. Meeting called to order at 4:00 by Board President Pinola
Roll Call: Trustee Glenda Antone, Trustee Maxine Barboza, Trustee Charlene
Pinola
Staff: Frances Johnson

2. Moved by Trustee Pinola, seconded by Trustee Antone to approve the agenda as
presented.

3. Closed Session — per GC54957, Discipline, Dismissal, Release

It was reported that during closed session all Trustee members voted to issue a
non-reelection of current teacher for the 2019-20 school year.

4. Meeting was adjourned

Respectfully Submitted by: Patti Pomplin

J/ 1
A

4 i /

71 / -.." rr-' N Ay
Signed: /AL 7] {J— ( f/ Al 71( &

" Glenda Antone, Clerk /




VY16 6L0Z 8Z 24 "(NITdNOdd) ulldwod med Joj pajessuss BlYsey - 90
| jo | sbed a ‘panoidde eq sxoayy Buipassid
INIING 353 9Y) 1By} PAPUSLILLIODS) ST ) "S83ISNJ] JO PIEOg U} JO UOHBZIIOYINE pue AJI0d S1OLISI SL) UM 89UBPIOIOE Ul PANSSI Uaaq aABY sydayd) Buipasaid syt

86'6¥2'C (unowy 323y} JoN

00" Aynger] xe} sejes predupn sse

86'6¥C'C St S¥02YD 10 ISQUINN [B10]

86'6vC'C Gl pun4 |eJauag L0
junowy pasuadxg Juno9 Yosyn uonduosag pungy

Arewwuing pung

86°6¥2°'Z Sl s)v8Y9 jo Joquiny [ejo)
00'8¢ ojnuew 861096 juudisbuy 008S-1.0 P3 JO 2040 Aunog ewouog  6102/51/20 S¥08691
006/ uonEONPS |B4NYIND OLEP-10 udwod med  6L0Z/51/20 708691
0000} U0jedNpa [eJnyno Jaxeeds 0€85-10 uosuyor seoueld  §10z/51/20 £¥08691
82912 €1 g8} ybnoius 061202 TE95-10 stwaysAg soyO Asaoostq  6102/51/20 Z708691
11'985 yosew gaj uef 0955-10 uuel ewouog ABojodsy  61.02/80/20 1229691
18°9%1 L2/8ETEVEST 0255-10 o083 B SeD duded  61.02/30/20 0/29691
z691e ov'sz JauuIp se31sNJ} JO piEOq z0zs 10

2199 |jodojseqss

ov'Sz uoibuiusy 1p / ebey 1025-10 uosuyor saoueld  §10z/80/20 69,9691
6815 90IAIBS POO}/BOI0ASND 0LEV-LO 1ewsdng eeens  §1.0z/80/20 8979691
9g'L9l 620128002 0LSS-L0 sebusiwy  §10Z/80/20 1979691
809LC 00°ErL awi} - sjeaw dn oid 008G-10

80°¢s [2ny sjeaw dn >oid L02S-10 PNoIQoOW UssI0D  6102/10/20 §GZS691
0561 308U pajepae)s G1G6-10 OUBION-OJNIEN BISIDIBIN  6102/10/20 $52S5691
G619 308U pejepa|els GLS6-10 1ousiq sanlin elusey  6L02/1.0/20 €525691
95°81 so||ddns dn yoid L0Z5-10 uosuyor saoueld  6102/10/20 2625691
00°0G} Jaynb pue joou 0085-40 ojnuely ebioss  6102/10/20 1GZG691
0442 - ) ) %08Yo pajepsjels G160 ) ) lleddeys jned  61.0z/10/20 0525691
junowy junowy juswiwon y03lqgo-pung J0 18pIQ ay) o0} Aed ajeq JaquinN
¥oayn pasuadxgy ¥oeyo Noayo

6102/82/20 ubnoays 610Z/10/20 P SHO2UD

jloday pieog oz Aedbay



ke
DRINKING

WATER
sschoeols

GRANT PROGRAM

KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND
CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

o

Water Boards
IMPLEMENTATION
GRANT
KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT DRINKING FOUNTAINS
AGREEMENT NO. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
GRANT FUNDS: $27,325
ELIGIBLE START DATE:
WORK COMPLETION DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2021

FINAL DISBURSEMENT REQUEST DATE: MARCH 31, 2021
RECORDS RETENTION TERM END DATE: FEBRUARY 28, 2028




Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 2 of 26

WHEREAS,

1. The State Water Board is authorized to provide financial assistance under this Agreement pursuant to
the following:

Section 116276 of the California Health and Safety Code.

2. The State Water Board determines eligibility for financial assistance, determines a reasonable
schedule for providing financial assistance, establishes compliance with applicable law, and
establishes the terms and conditions of a financial assistance agreement.

3. The Recipient has applied to the State Water Board for financial assistance for the Project described
in Exhibit A of this Agreement, and the State Water Board has selected the application for financial
assistance.

4. The State Water Board proposes to assist in funding the costs of the Project, and the Recipient
desires to participate as a recipient of financial assistance from the State Water Board, upon the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, all pursuant to applicable law.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, mutual representations, covenants and
agreements in this Agreement, the State Water Board and the Recipient, each binding itself, its
successors and assigns, do mutually promise, covenant, and agree as follows:

1. Definitions
Unless otherwise specified, each capitalized term used in this Agreement has the following meaning:
“Agreement” means this Grant Agreement, including all exhibits and attachments hereto.

“Authorized Representative” means the duly appointed representative of the Recipient as set forth in the
certified original of the Recipient’s authorizing resolution that designates the Authorized Representative
by title.

“Days” means calendar days unless otherwise expressly indicated.
“Disbursement Period” means the period during which Grant Funds may be disbursed.

“Disbursement Request” means the form used by the Recipient to document and request reimbursement
of Project Costs.

“Division” means the Division of Financial Assistance of the State Water Board or any other segment of
the State Water Board authorized to administer the Drinking Water For Schools Grant Program.

“Eligible Start Date” means the date set forth in Exhibit B, establishing the date on or after which
reimbursable Project Costs may be incurred and eligible for reimbursement hereunder.

“Event of Default” means the occurrence of any of the following events: (a) any representation or warranty
made by the Recipient under this Agreement proves to be incorrect in any material respect, (b) the
Recipient's failure to observe or perform any covenant, condition, or provision contained in Exhibit B of
this Agreement, (c) the failure of the Recipient to perform any covenant or condition under this
Agreement and such failure shall remain unremedied for a period of 30 days, unless expressly waived by
the Division, (d) the failure of the Recipient to keep in full force and effect its legal existence and any
rights, licenses, permit, or privileges to conduct its business, or the occurrence of any material restraint on
Recipient’s business by a government agency or by court order, (e) initiations of proceedings seeking



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 3 of 26

liquidation, reorganization, or other relief with respect to the Recipient or its debts, or for the appointment
of a receiver, trustee, custodian or conservator with respect to the Recipient or any part of its assets, or
similar event, or (f) a material adverse change in the business, operations, or condition (financial or
otherwise) of Recipient.

“Final Disbursement Request Date” means the date established in Exhibit B, after which date no further
Grant Funds disbursements may be requested.

“Fiscal Year” means the period of twelve (12) months terminating on June 30 of any year.
“Force Account” means the use of the Recipient's own employees or resources for the Project.

“GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles, the uniform accounting and reporting
procedures set forth in publications of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or its
successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such procedures, and includes, as applicable,
the standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board or its successor.

“Grant Contact” means the employee of the Recipient who has been delegated by the Project Director to
oversee the day-to-day activities of the Project.

“Grant Funds” means funds provided by the State Water Board towards eligible reimbursable Project
Costs.

“Grant Manager” means the person designated by the State Water Board to manage performance of the
Agreement. The Grant Manager is set forth in this Agreement.

“Guidelines” means the State Water Board's “Drinking Water For Schools Grant Program Funding
Guidelines,” as adopted May 16, 2017, and amended from time to time.

“Party Contact” means, for the Recipient, the Authorized Representative of the Recipient or any designee
of the Authorized Representative, and, for the State Water Board, the Grant Manager. The Party
Contacts are set forth in this Agreement.

“Project” means the Project financed by this Agreement, as described in Exhibit A and in the documents
incorporated by reference.

“Project Completion” means, as determined by the Division, that the Project is complete to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Division.

“Project Costs” means the incurred costs of the Recipient which are eligible for financial assistance under
this Agreement, which are allowable costs as defined under the Guidelines, and which are reasonable,
necessary and allocable by the Recipient to the Project under GAAP.

“Project Director” means an employee of the Recipient designated by the Authorized Representative to
be responsible for the overall management of the administrative and technical aspects of the executed
Agreement. The Project Director is set forth in this Agreement.

“Recipient” means Kashia Elementary School District.

“State" means State of California.

“State Water Board” means the California State Water Resources Control Board, an administrative and
regulatory agency of the State of California.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 4 of 26

“Work Completion” means the Recipient’'s submittal of all work set forth under Exhibit A for review and
approval by the Division. The Division may require corrective work to be performed prior to Project
Completion. Any work occurring after the Work Completion Date will not be reimbursed under this
Agreement.

“Work Completion Date” means the date set forth in Exhibit A that is the last date on which Project Costs
may be incurred under this Agreement.

“Year” means calendar year unless otherwise expressly indicated.
2. Party Contacts

The Party Contacts during the term of this Agreement are:

State Water Board Kashia Elementary School District
Section: Division of Financial Assistance -

Name: Christina Raynard, Grant Manager Name: Frances Johnson, Project Director
Address: 1001 | Street, 17th Floor Address: P.O. Box 129

City, State, Zip: Sacramento, CA 95814 City, State, Zip: Stewarts Point, CA 95480
Phone: (916) 319-9123 Phone: (707) 785-9682

Fax: (916) 341-5806 Fax: (707) 785-2802

Email: Christina.Raynard@waterboards.ca.gov Email: fiohnson@scoe.org

State Water Board, Division of Drinking Water,
Sonoma District Office

Name: Janice Thomas, Technical Contact
Address: 50 D Street, Suite 200

City, State, Zip: Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Phone: (707) 576-2145

Fax: (707)576-2722

Email: Janice.Thomas@waterboards.ca.gov

Direct inquiries to:

State Water Board Kashia Elementary School District

Section: Division of Financial Assistance -
Name: Lily Lee, Program Analyst Name: Patti Pomplin, Grant Contact

Address: 1001 | Street, 17" Floor Address: P.O. Box 129 __
City, State, Zip: Sacramento, CA 95814 City, State, Zip: Stewarts Point, CA 95480
Phone: (916) 445-2816 Phone: (707) 321-5849 _|
Fax: (916) 341-5296 Fax: (707) 785-2802

Email:  Lily.Lee@waterboards.ca.gov Email: ppomplin@kashiaesd.org

The Recipient may change its Project Director upon written notice to the Grant Manager, which notice
shall be accompanied by authorization from the Recipient's Authorized Representative. The State Water
Board will notify the Project Director of any changes to its Party Contacts.

3. Exhibits and Appendices Incorporated

The following exhibits and appendices to this Agreement, including any amendments and supplements
hereto, are hereby incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement:

EXHIBIT A — SCOPE OF WORK



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700
Page 5 of 26

EXHIBIT B — FUNDING PROVISIONS

EXHIBIT C — STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4. Representations, Warranties, and Commitments

The Recipient represents, warrants, and commits to the following as of the Eligible Start Date set forth in
Exhibit B and continuing thereafter for the term of this Agreement:

(a)

(d)

(9)

(h)

General Commitments. The Recipient accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions,
conditions, and commitments of this Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to
fulfill all assurances, declarations, representations, and commitments made by the Recipient in its
application, accompanying documents, and communications filed in support of its request for
financial assistance and throughout the term of this Agreement.

Authorization and Validity. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, including all
incorporated documents, has been duly authorized by the Recipient. Upon execution by both
parties, this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement may be limited by law.

No Violations. The execution, delivery, and performance by the Recipient of this Agreement,
including all incorporated documents, do not violate any provision of any law or regulation in
effect as of the date set forth on the first page hereof, or result in any breach or default under any
contract, obligation, indenture, or other instrument to which the Recipient is a party or by which the
Recipient is bound as of the date set forth on the first page hereof.

No Litigation. There are no pending or, to the Recipient's knowledge, threatened actions, claims,
investigations, suits, or proceedings before any governmental authority, court, or administrative
agency which materially affect the financial condition or operations of the Recipient and/or the
Project.

Solvency. None of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will be or have been made
with an actual intent to hinder, delay, or defraud any present or future creditors of the Recipient.
As of the date set forth on the first page hereof, the Recipient is solvent and will not be rendered
insolvent by the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Recipient is able to pay its
debts as they become due.

Legal Status and Eligibility. The Recipient is duly organized and existing and in good standing
under the laws of the State of California, and will remain so during the term of this Agreement.
The Recipient shall at all times maintain its current legal existence and preserve and keep in full
force and effect its legal rights and authority. The Recipient shall maintain its eligibility for funding
under this Agreement for the term of this Agreement.

Good Standing. The Recipient is currently in compliance with the State requirements set forth in
Exhibit C. Within the preceding ten years, the Recipient has not failed to demonstrate compliance
with previous State audit disallowances.

Insurance. The Recipient maintains sufficient insurance coverage considering the scope of this
Agreement including, for example, but not necessarily limited to: general liability, automobile liability,
worker's compensation and employer’s liability, and professional liability.

5. Project Completion



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 6 of 26

The Recipient shall expeditiously proceed with and complete the Project in substantial accordance with
this Agreement.

6. Notice

(a) The Recipient shall notify the Division in writing within five (5) working days of the occurrence of

the following:

(1) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Recipient;

(2) Actions taken pursuant to state law in anticipation of filing for bankruptcy;

(3) Change of management or service contracts, if any, for the Project; or

(4) Any Event of Default, except as set forth in subdivisions (b) or (c) of this section.

The Recipient shall notify the Division within ten (10) working days of any litigation pending or
threatened against the Recipient regarding its continued existence, consideration of dissolution,
or disincorporation.

The Recipient shall notify the Division promptly of the following:

(1) Any proposed change in the scope of the Project. Under no circumstances may the
Recipient undertake substantial changes to the scope of the Project without providing the
Division with prior written notice of the proposed change and receiving prior written approval
from the Division;

(2) Cessation of work on the Project where such cessation of work is expected to or does extend
for a period of thirty (30) days or more;

(3) Any circumstance, combination of circumstances, or condition, which is expected to or does
delay Work Completion;

(4) Discovery of any potential archaeological or historical resource. Should a potential
archaeological or historical resource be discovered during construction of the Project, the
Recipient agrees that all work in the area of the find will cease until a qualified archaeologist
has evaluated the situation and made recommendations regarding preservation of the
resource, and the Division has determined what actions should be taken to protect and
preserve the resource. The Recipient agrees to implement appropriate actions as directed by
the Division;

(5) Discovery of any unexpected endangered or threatened species, as defined in the federal
Endangered Species Act. Should a federally protected species be unexpectedly encountered
during construction of the Project, the Recipient agrees to promptly notify the Division. This
notification is in addition to the Recipient's obligations under the federal Endangered Species
Act;

(6) Any Project monitoring, demonstration, or other implementation activities such that the State
Water Board staff may observe and document such activities;

(7) Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this Agreement
and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by State representatives with at
least ten (10) working days’ notice to the Division; or

(8) Work Completion and Project Completion.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 7 of 26

7. Project Site Access

The Recipient shall ensure that the State Water Board, the Governor of the State, or any authorized
representative of the foregoing, will have safe and suitable access to the Project site at all reasonable
times during the Project.

8. No Obligation of the State; State Budget Act Contingency

Any obligation of the State Water Board contained herein shall not be an obligation, debt, or liability of the
State and any such obligation shall be payable solely out of the moneys appropriated by the State
Legislature to the State Water Board from the special fund associated with this Agreement.

If the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not
appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall be of no force and effect. This
provision shall be construed as a condition precedent to the obligation of the State Water Board to make
any payments under this Agreement. In this event, the State shall have no liability to pay any funds
whatsoever to the Recipient or to furnish any other considerations under this Agreement, and the
Recipient shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be construed to provide the Recipient with a right of priority for payment over any other recipient.

If this Agreement’s funding for any Fiscal Year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act, by Executive
Order, or by order of the Department of Finance, the State shall have the option to either cancel this
Agreement with no liability occurring to the State, or offer an Agreement amendment to the Recipient to
reflect the reduced amount.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 8 of 26

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT:

By:

Name: Frances Johnson

Title:  Superintendent/Principal

Date:

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD:

By:

Name: Leslie S. Laudon

Title:  Deputy Director
Division of Financial Assistance

Date:




Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 9 of 26
EXHIBIT A — SCOPE OF WORK
A-1. Completion Date

The Work Completion Date is established as FEBRUARY 28, 2021. Work occurring after the Work
Completion Date, including corrective actions, is not eligible for reimbursement with Grant Funds.

A-2. Purpose

This grant is for the benefit of the Recipient. This grant is for the purpose of installing drinking water
fountains/filling stations at Kashia Elementary School (School).

A-3. Project-Specific Scope of Work
The Recipient agrees to do the following:
1. Project Management
1.1 Provide all technical and administrative services as needed for Project completion;
monitor, supervise, and review all work performed; and coordinate budgeting and
scheduling to ensure the Project is completed within budget, on schedule, and in

accordance with approved procedures, applicable laws, and regulations.

1.2 Develop a detailed Project schedule, including key Project milestones and anticipated
meetings, and submit to the Grant Manager.

1.2.1  Submit any updates to the Project schedule in the associated quarterly progress
report(s).

1.3 Notify the Grant Manager at least ten (10) working days in advance of upcoming
meetings, workshops, and trainings.

14 Conduct pre-, during, and post-construction photo monitoring and submit to the Grant
Manager.
1.5 Conduct periodic and final site visits with the Grant Manager.

2. Planning and Design

2.1 Prepare and submit conceptual design documentation, including a map of work locations
and a list of equipment with the manufacturer and model to be installed, to the Grant
Manager for approval.

2.1.1  Install two (2) drinking water fountains with filling stations, including modifications
to electricity and plumbing.

2.2 Complete the bid documents, if required, in accordance with the approved conceptual
desigh documentation, after receiving all required approvals, including as required in ltem
3, and advertise the Project for bid per District requirements. Submit the advertised bid
documents and bid summary to the Grant Manager.

3. Department of General Services, Division of State Architect

3.1 Comply with the Department of General Services, Division of State Architect (DSA) process
for conceptual design documentation approval, if required.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 10 of 26

3.1.1  Submit the conceptual design documentation approved in Item 2.1 to DSA for
approval, or;

3.1.2  Provide a letter certifying the Project is exempt from DSA review and the basis for
the exemption to the Grant Manager.

3.2 Submit proof of conceptual design documentation approval received from DSA, if required
in Item 3.1, including comments or changes, to the Grant Manager prior to preparing the
bid documents in Item 2.2.

4. Construction and Implementation

4.1  Construct the Project in accordance with the approved conceptual design documentation in
Item 2.1, after obtaining approval, if required in Item 3.

4.3 Notify Grant Manager of any proposed changes that arise during construction that may
affect the Project’s scope, schedule, or costs.

5. Education and Outreach

5.1 Develop and implement an education and outreach plan to inform students and staff of
benefits associated with the Project and submit the plan to the Grant Manager.

5.2 Conduct a minimum of one (1) assembly meeting at the School to inform students and staff
about the Project. Submit photo documentation to the Grant Manager.

Reporting

(a) Progress Reports. The Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports, using a format provided
by the Grant Manager, within forty-five (45) days following the end of the calendar quarter (March,
June, September, and December) to the Grant Manager. Progress reports shall provide the
status of the long-term solution (if applicable), a brief description of activities that have occurred,
milestones achieved, monitoring results (if applicable), and any problems encountered in the
performance of the work under this Agreement during the applicable reporting period. Reporting
shall be required even if no grant-related activities occurred during the reporting period. The
Recipient shall document all activities and expenditures in progress reports, including work
performed by contractors.

(b) As Needed Information or Reports. The Recipient agrees to submit expeditiously, during the term
of this Agreement, such reports, data, and information as may be reasonably required by the
Division including, but not limited to, material necessary or appropriate for evaluation of the
funding program or to fulfill any reporting requirements of the state or federal government.

(c) Final Reports. At the conclusion of the Project, the Recipient must submit the following to the
Grant Manager:

(1) Draft Final Project Report. Prepare and submit to the Grant Manager, for review and comment,
a draft Final Project Report in a format provided by the Grant Manager.

(2) Final Project Report. Prepare a Final Project Report that addresses, to the extent feasible,
comments made by the Grant Manager on the draft Final Project Report. Submit one (1)
reproducible master copy and an electronic copy of the final. Upload an electronic copy of the
final report in pdf format to the FAAST system.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 11 of 26

(3) Final Project Inspection and Certification. Upon completion of the Project, the Recipient shall
provide for a final inspection and shall certify that the Project has been completed in
accordance with this Agreement, any final plans and specifications submitted to the State
Water Board, and any amendments or modifications thereto. If the Project involved the
planning, investigation, evaluation, design, or other work requiring interpretation and proper
application of engineering, or other professionals, the final inspection and certification shall be
conducted by a California Registered Civil Engineer or other appropriate California registered
professional. The results of the final inspection and certification shall be submitted to the Grant
Manager.



A-5. Submittal Schedule

Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700
Page 12 of 26

Failure to provide items by the due dates indicated in the Submittal Schedule below may constitute a
material violation of this Agreement. However, the dates in the "Estimated Due Date” column of this
Submittal Schedule may be adjusted as necessary during the Disbursement Period with Grant Manager
approval. All work or submittals must be achieved with relevant submittals approved by the Division prior
to the Work Completion Date, and the final Disbursement Request submitted prior to the Final

Disbursement Request Date set forth in Exhibit B.

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SUBMITTAL CRITICAL DUE ESTIMATED DUE
DATE DATE
EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK
| A-3 | Project-Specific Scope of Work R
i Project Management
1.2 Project Schedule XX Days After
Execution
1.3 Notification of Upcoming Meetings, Workshops, and As Necessary
Trainings
1.4 Pre-, During, and Post-Construction Photo Ongoing
Documentation
1.5 Periodic and Final Site Visits n As Necessary
Planning and Design o
2.1 a)ﬁceptual Design Documentation R Month Year
2.2 Advertised Bid Documentation and Summary | Month Year
3. Department of General Services, Division of State Architect
3.1.2 Exemption Certification R Month Year
3.2 Conceptual Design Documentation Approval Month Year
4, Construction and Implementation
4.2 Notification of Proposed Changes R Ongoing |
5. Education and Outreach -
5.1 Education and Outreach Plan Month Year
5.2 Photo Document of School Assembly | Month Year
EXHIBIT A-4 - REPORTING
Ta)_ Progress Reports Quarterly R
(b) As Needed Information or Reports R As Necessary
{c) Final Reports |
EXHIBIT A-4 - REPORTING
(c)(1) [ Draft Final Project Report December 31,2020 |
(c)(2) | Final Project Report ~ January 31, 2021




Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700

Page 13 of 26

EXHIBIT A-4 - REPORTING

(€)(3)

Final Project Inspection and Certification Before Work

Completion Date

EXHIBIT B FUNDING PROVISIONS

3 (b)

Final Disbursement Request

March 31, 2021

8 (b)(4)

Disbursement Requests

Quarterly




Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 14 of 26
EXHIBIT B — FUNDING PROVISIONS
B-1.  Project Funding

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the State Water Board agrees to provide Grant Funds in the
amount of up to TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS
($27,325).

B-2. Estimated Reasonable Total Project Cost

The estimated reasonable cost of the total Project is TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED
TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($27,325).

B-3.  Funding Dates

(@) The Eligible Start Date is [DATE]. Otherwise eligible costs incurred prior to this date will not be
reimbursed.

(b) The Final Disbursement Request Date is MARCH 31, 2021. The Deputy Director of the Division
may extend this date for good cause. Extensions may require an amendment to this Agreement.
All Disbursement Requests must be submitted to the Division such that they are received prior to
this date. Late Disbursement Requests will not be honored, and remaining amounts will be
deobligated.

B-4. Financial Assistance Contingency and Exclusions

The State Water Board's disbursement of Grant Funds hereunder is contingent on the Recipient's
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B-5. Budget Summary

"LINE ITEM TOTAL PROJECT
COSTS
Direct Project Administration Costs $2,690
rlannlng/DeS|gn/Eng|neerlng/Enwronmenta $3.375
Implementation o - $18,130
Education/Outreach 1 $3.,130
TOTA:L $27,325

B-6.  Budget Flexibility

(a) Subject to the prior review and approval of the Grant Manager, adjustments between existing line
items may be used to defray allowable direct costs up to fifteen percent (15%) of the total
amount, including any amendment(s) thereto. Line item adjustments in excess of fifteen percent
(15%) require an Agreement amendment. If the detailed budget includes an amount for the
Recipient’s personnel costs, that amount is based on the hours, classifications, and rates
submitted by the Recipient in its application. Any changes to the hours, classifications, and rates
must be approved, in advance and in writing, by the Grant Manager.

(b) The Recipient may submit a request for an adjustment in writing to the Grant Manager. Such
adjustment may not increase or decrease the total grant amount. The Recipient shall submit a
copy of the original Agreement budget sheet reflecting the requested changes and shall note
proposed changes by striking out the original amount(s) followed with proposed change(s) in bold



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700
Page 15 of 26

and underlined. Budget adjustments deleting a budget line item or adding a new budget line item
shall require a formal amendment. The Division may also propose budget adjustments.

(c) The sum of adjusted line items shall not exceed the total budget amount.

B-7. Project Costs

The Recipient agrees to pay any and all costs connected with the Project including, without limitation, any
and all Project Costs. If the Grant Funds are not sufficient to pay the Project Costs in full, the Recipient
shall nonetheless complete the Project and pay that portion of the Project Costs in excess of available
Grant Funds, and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from the State Water Board.

B-8.  Disbursement of Grant Funds; Availability of Grant Funds

(a) The State Water Board's obligation to disburse Grant Funds is contingent upon the availability of
sufficient funds to permit the disbursements provided for herein. If sufficient funds are not
available for any reason including, but not limited to, failure of the State government to
appropriate funds necessary for disbursement of Grant Funds, the State Water Board shall not be
obligated to make any disbursements to the Recipient under this Agreement. This provision shall
be construed as a condition precedent to the obligation of the State Water Board to make any
disbursements under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide
the Recipient with a right of priority for disbursement over any other recipient. If any
disbursements due the Recipient under this Agreement are deferred because sufficient funds are
unavailable, it is the intention of the State Water Board that such disbursement will be made to
the Recipient when sufficient funds do become available, but this intention is not binding. If this
Agreement’s funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act, by Executive
Order, or by order of the Department of Finance, the State shall have the option to either cancel
this Agreement with no liability occurring to the State, or offer an amendment to the Recipient to
reflect the reduced amount.

(b) Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement, disbursement of Grant Funds will be
made as follows:

(1) Upon execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Recipient may submit a Disbursement
Request for eligible Project Costs to the State Water Board using the Disbursement
Request form provided by the Grant Manager.

(2) Disbursement Requests shall contain the following information:

a.The date of the request;
b. The time period covered by the request, i.e., the term “from” and “to”;
c. The total amount requested;

d.Original signature and date (in ink) of Recipient's Project Director or his/her designee;
and

e.The Final Disbursement Request shall be clearly marked “FINAL DISBURSEMENT
REQUEST" and shall be submitted NO LATER THAN MARCH 31, 2021.

(3) Disbursement Requests must be itemized based on the line items specified in the budget in
this Exhibit. Disbursement Requests must be signed by the Recipient's Project Director or
his/her designee and must be addressed to the Grant Manager as set forth in the Party
Contacts section of this Agreement. Requests for disbursement submitted in any other
format than the one provided by the State Water Board will cause a Disbursement Request



(5)

(10)

Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 16 of 26

to be disputed. In the event of such a dispute, the Grant Manager will notify the Recipient.
Payment will not be made until the dispute is resolved and a corrected Disbursement
Request submitted. The Grant Manager has the responsibility for approving Disbursement
Requests. Project Costs incurred prior to the Eligible Start Date of this Agreement will not
be reimbursed.

Grant Funds must be requested quarterly via Disbursement Request for eligible costs
incurred during the reporting period of the corresponding progress report, describing the
activities and expenditures for which the disbursement is being requested. Each
Disbursement Request must be accompanied by a progress report. Failure to provide
timely Disbursement Requests may result in such requests not being honored.

The Recipient agrees that it will not submit any Disbursement Requests that include any
Project Costs until such costs have been incurred and are currently due and payable by the
Recipient; although, the actual payment of such costs by the Recipient is not required as a
condition of the Disbursement Request. Supporting documentation (e.g., receipts) must be
submitted with each Disbursement Request. The amount requested for administration
costs must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or days worked times the hourly or
daily rate = total amount claimed). Disbursement of Grant Funds will be made only after
receipt of a complete, adequately supported, properly documented and accurately
addressed Disbursement Request.

The Recipient will not seek reimbursement of any Project Costs that have been reimbursed
from other funding sources.

The Recipient shall use Grant Funds within thirty (30) days of receipt to reimburse
contractors, vendors, and other Project Costs. Any interest earned on Grant Funds shall
be reported to the State Water Board and will either be required to be returned to the State
Water Board or deducted from future disbursements. In the event that the Recipient fails to
disburse Grant Funds to contractors or vendors within thirty (30) days from receipt of the
Grant Funds, the Recipient shall immediately return such Grant Funds to the State Water
Board. Interest shall accrue on such Grant Funds from the date of disbursement through
the date of mailing of Grant Funds to the State Water Board. If the Recipient held such
Grant Funds in interest-bearing accounts, any interest earned on the Grant Funds shall
also be due to the State Water Board.

The Recipient shall submit its final Disbursement Request no later than the Final
Disbursement Request Date specified herein unless prior approval is granted by the
Division. If the Recipient fails to do so, then the undisbursed balance of this Agreement will
be deobligated.

The Recipient agrees that it will not request a disbursement unless that cost is allowable,
reasonable, and allocable.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, no disbursement shall be required
at any time or in any manner that is in violation of or in conflict with federal or state laws,
policies, or regulations.

The Recipient agrees that it shall not be entitled to interest earned on undisbursed Grant
Funds.

Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall be at rates not to exceed those
set by the California Department of Human Resources. These rates may be found at
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/iemployees/Pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx. Reimbursement
will be at the State travel and per diem amounts that are current as of the date costs are




Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 17 of 26

incurred by the Recipient. No travel outside the State of California shall be reimbursed
unless prior written authorization is obtained from the Grant Manager.

(13) The Recipient must include any other documents or requests required or allowed under this
Agreement.

B-9. Withholding of Disbursements and Material Violations

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Recipient agrees that the State Water
Board may retain an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Grant Funds until Project
Completion. Any retained amounts due to the Recipient will be promptly disbursed to the
Recipient, without interest, upon Project Completion.

(b) The State Water Board may withhold all or any portion of the funds provided for by this
Agreement in the event that:

(1) The Recipient has materially violated, or threatens to materially violate, any term, provision,
condition, or commitment of this Agreement; or

(2) The Recipient fails to maintain reasonable progress toward Project Completion.
B-10. Remaining Balance

In the event the Recipient does not request all of the Grant Funds encumbered under this Agreement,
any remaining Grant Funds revert to the State.

B-11. Fraud and Misuse of Public Funds

All Disbursement Requests submitted shall be accurate and signed under penalty of perjury. Any and all
costs submitted pursuant to this Agreement shall only be for the tasks set forth herein. The Recipient
shall not submit any Disbursement Request containing costs that are ineligible or have been reimbursed
from other funding sources unless required and specifically noted as such. Any eligible costs for which
the Recipient is seeking reimbursement shall not be reimbursed from any other source. Double or
multiple billing for time, services, or any other eligible cost is illegal and constitutes fraud. Any suspected
occurrences of fraud, forgery, embezzlement, theft, or any other misuse of public funds may result in
suspension of disbursements of Grant Funds and/or termination of this Agreement requiring the
repayment of all Grant Funds disbursed hereunder. Additionally, the Deputy Director of the Division may
request an audit and refer the matter to the Attorney General's Office or the appropriate district attorney’s
office for criminal prosecution or the imposition of civil liability. (Civ. Code, §§ 1572-1573; Pen. Code, §§
470, 489-490.)



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 18 of 26

EXHIBIT C — STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
C-1.  Accounting and Auditing Standards

The Recipient shall maintain GAAP-compliant Project accounts, including GAAP requirements relating to
the reporting of infrastructure assets.

C-2. Amendment

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed
by the parties, and approved as required. No oral or written understanding or agreement not incorporated
in this Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

C-3.  Assignability
This Agreement is not assignable by the Recipient, either in whole or in part.
C-4.  Audit

(a) The Division, at its option, may call for an audit of financial information relative to the Project, if
the Division determines that an audit is desirable to assure program integrity or if such an audit
becomes necessary because of state or federal requirements. Where such an audit is called for,
the audit shall be performed by a certified public accountant independent of the Recipient and at
the cost of the Recipient. The audit shall be in the form required by the Division.

(b) Audit disallowances will be returned to the State Water Board. Failure to comply with audit
disallowance provisions shall disqualify the Recipient from participating in State Water Board
funding programs.

C-5. Bonding

Where contractors are used, the Recipient shall not authorize construction to begin until each contractor
has furnished a performance bond in favor of the Recipient in the following amounts: faithful performance
(100%) of contract value, and labor and materials (100%) of contract value. This requirement shall not
apply to any contract for less than $25,000.00.

C-6.  Continuous Use of Project; Lease or Disposal of Project

The Recipient agrees that, except as provided in this Agreement, it will not abandon, substantially
discontinue use of, lease, or dispose of the Project or any significant part or portion thereof during the
useful life of the Project without prior written approval of the Deputy Director of the Division. Such
approval may be conditioned as determined to be appropriate by the Deputy Director of the Division,
including a condition that a long-term solution be satisfactorily implemented or a condition that the
Recipient repay all Grant Funds or any portion of all remaining Grant Funds covered by this Agreement
together with accrued interest and any penalty assessments which may be due.

C-7. Claims

Any claim of the Recipient is limited to the rights, remedies, and claims procedures provided to the
Recipient under this Agreement.

C-8.  Competitive Bidding

The Recipient shall adhere to any applicable state law or local ordinance for competitive bidding and
applicable labor laws.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 19 of 26

C-9. Compliance with Law, Regulations, etc.

The Recipient agrees that it shall, at all times, comply with and require its contractors and subcontractors
to comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, guidelines, regulations, and requirements.
Without limitation of the foregoing, the Recipient agrees that, to the extent applicable, the Recipient shall:

(@) Comply with the provisions of the adopted environmental mitigation plan, if any, for the term of
this Agreement;

{b) Comply with the Guidelines; and

(c) Comply with and require compliance with the list of state laws (cross-cutters) in Section C-31 of
this Agreement.

C-10. Conflict of Interest

The Recipient certifies that its owners, officers, directors, agents, representatives, and employees are in
compliance with applicable state and federal conflict of interest laws.

C-11. Disputes

(@) The Recipient may appeal a staff decision within thirty (30) days to the Deputy Director of the
Division or designee, for a final Division decision. The Recipient may appeal a final Division
decision to the State Water Board within thirty (30) days. The Office of the Chief Counsel of the
State Water Board will prepare a summary of the dispute and make recommendations relative to
its final resolution, which will be provided to the State Water Board's Executive Director and each
State Water Board Member. Upon the motion of any State Water Board Member, the State
Water Board will review and resolve the dispute in the manner determined by the State Water
Board. Should the State Water Board determine not to review the final Division decision, this
decision will represent a final agency action on the dispute.

(b) This clause does not preclude consideration of legal questions, provided that nothing herein shall
be construed to make final the decision of the State Water Board, or any official or representative
thereof, on any question of law.

(c) The Recipient shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute.

(d) This section relating to disputes does not establish an exclusive procedure for resolving claims
within the meaning of Government Code sections 930 and 930.4.

C-12. Financial Management System and Standards

The Recipient agrees to comply with federal standards for financial management systems. The Recipient
agrees that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to permit
preparation of reports required by the federal or state government and tracking of Project Costs to a level
of expenditure adequate to establish that such Grant Funds have not been used in violation of federal or
state laws or the terms of this Agreement.

C-13. Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
California.

C-14. Income Restrictions



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 20 of 26

The Recipient agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits, or other amounts (including any interest thereon)
accruing to or received by the Recipient under this Agreement shall be paid by the Recipient to the State
Water Board, to the extent that they are properly allocable to Project Costs for which the Recipient has
been reimbursed by the State Water Board under this Agreement.

C-15. Indemnification and State Reviews

The parties agree that review or approval of Project documents by the State Water Board is for
administrative purposes only, including conformity with application and eligibility criteria, and expressly
not for the purposes of design defect review or construction feasibility, and does not relieve the Recipient
of its responsibility to properly plan, design, construct, operate, and maintain the Project. To the extent
permitted by law, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State Water Board,
and its officers, employees, and agents (collectively, "Indemnified Persons"), from and against any and all
losses, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses, of every conceivable kind, character, and nature
whatsoever arising out of, resulting from, or in any way connected with (1) the Project or the conditions,
occupancy, use, possession, conduct, or management of, work done in or about, or the planning, design,
acquisition, installation, or construction, of the Project or any part thereof; (2) the carrying out of any of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any related document; (3) any violation of any applicable
law, rule or regulation, any environmental law (including, without limitation, the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
the California Hazardous Substance Account Act, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, the Clean Air
Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Safe Drinking Water
Act, the California Hazardous Waste Control Law, and California Water Code section 13304, and any
successors to said laws), rule or regulation or the release of any toxic substance on or near the Project;
or (4) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact or omission or alleged
omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements required to be stated therein, in light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading with respect to any information
provided by the Recipient for use in any disclosure document utilized in connection with any of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except those arising from the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of the Indemnified Persons. The Recipient shall also provide for the defense and
indemnification of the Indemnified Parties in any contractual provision extending indemnity to the
Recipient in any contract let for the performance of any work under this Agreement, and shall cause the
Indemnified Parties to be included within the scope of any provision for the indemnification and defense of
the Recipient in any contract or subcontract. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Recipient agrees
to pay and discharge any judgment or award entered or made against Indemnified Persons with respect
to any such claim or action, and any settlement, compromise or other voluntary resolution.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Recipient shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, hold harmless,
pay or discharge any losses, claims, damages, judgement, liabilities, or expenses arising from the gross
negligence or wiliful misconduct of any Indemnified Persons. The provisions of this section shall survive
the term of this Agreement and the discharge of the Recipient's obligations hereunder.

C-16. Independent Actor

The Recipient, and its agents and employees, if any, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an
independent capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State Water Board.

C-17. Integration
This Agreement is the complete and final Agreement between the parties.
C-18. Non-Discrimination Clause

(a) During the performance of this Agreement, the Recipient and its contractors and subcontractors
shall not uniawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 21 of 26

for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, sexual
orientation, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition
(cancer), age (over 40), marital status, denial of family care leave, or genetic information, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, or military and veteran status.

(b) The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment
of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and
harassment.

(c) The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder. (Gov.
Code, §12990, subds. (a)-(f) et seq.; Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 7285 et seq.) Such regulations are
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.

(d) The Recipient, its contractors, and subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations
under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other
agreement.

(e) The Recipient shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all
subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement.

C-19. No Third Party Rights

The parties to this Agreement do not create rights in, or grant remedies to, any third party as a beneficiary
of this Agreement, or of any duty, covenant, obligation, or undertaking established herein.

C-20. Operation and Maintenance; Insurance

The Recipient agrees to sufficiently and properly staff, operate and maintain all portions of the Project
during its useful life in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.

The Recipient will procure and maintain or cause to be maintained insurance on the Project with
responsible insurers, or as part of a reasonable system of self-insurance, in such amounts and against
such risks (including damage to or destruction of the Project) as are usually covered in connection with
systems similar to the Project. Such insurance may be maintained by the maintenance of a self-
insurance plan so long as any such plan provides for (i) the establishment by the Recipient of a separate
segregated self-insurance fund funded in an amount determined (initially and on at least an annual basis)
by an independent insurance consultant experienced in the field of risk management employing accepted
actuarial techniques and (ii) the establishment and maintenance of a claims processing and risk
management program.

In the event of any damage to or destruction of the Project caused by the perils covered by such
insurance, the net proceeds thereof shall be applied to the reconstruction, repair or replacement of the
damaged or destroyed portion of the Project. The Recipient shall begin such reconstruction, repair or
replacement as expeditiously as possible, and shall pay out of such net proceeds all costs and expenses
in connection with such reconstruction, repair or replacement so that the same shall be completed and
the Project shall be free and clear of all claims and liens.

The Recipient agrees that for any policy of general liability insurance concerning the construction related
to this Project, it will cause, and will require its contractors and subcontractors to cause, a certificate of
insurance to be issued showing the State Water Board, its officers, agents, employees, and servants as
additional insured; and shall provide the Division with a copy of all such certificates prior to the
commencement of construction associated with this Project upon request by the Grant Manager.

C-21. Other Assistance



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700
Page 22 of 26

If funding for Project Costs is made available to the Recipient from sources other than this Agreement,
the Recipient shall immediately notify the Grant Manager. To the extent allowed by requirements of other
funding sources, excess funding shall be remitted to the State Water Board.

C-22. Permits; Contracting; Disqualification

The Recipient shall comply in all material respects with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules
and regulations. The Recipient shall procure all permits, licenses and other authorizations necessary to
accomplish the work contemplated in this Agreement, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices
necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the work. Signed copies of any such
permits or licenses shall be submitted to the Division before implementation or construction begins.

For any work related to this Agreement, the Recipient shall not contract or allow subcontracting with any
individual or organization on the State Water Board's List of Disqualified Businesses and Persons that is
identified as debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in any work
overseen, directed, funded, or administered by the State Water Board program for which funding under
this Agreement is authorized. The State Water Board'’s List of Disqualified Businesses and Persons is
located at http:/lwww.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/prograr is/enforcemerit/fwa/dbp.shtml. The
Recipient shall not contract or allow subcontracting with any party who is debarred, suspended, or
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs under Executive
Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.”

C-23. Prevailing Wages

The Recipient agrees to be bound by all applicable provisions of the State Labor Code regarding
prevailing wages. The Recipient shall monitor all agreements subject to reimbursement from this
Agreement to ensure that the prevailing wage provisions of the State Labor Code are being met.

C-24. Professionals

The Recipient agrees that only professionals with valid licenses in the State of California will be used to
perform services under this Agreement where such services are called for. All technical reports required
pursuant to this Agreement that involve planning, investigation, evaluation, design, or other work requiring
interpretation and proper application of engineering, architecture, or geologic sciences shall be prepared
by or under the direction of persons registered to practice in California. All technical reports must contain
the statement of the qualifications of the responsible registered professional(s). Technical reports must
bear the signature(s) and seal(s) of the registered professional(s) in a manner such that all work can be
clearly attributed to the professional responsible for the work.

C-25. Public Funding

This Project is publicly funded. Any service provider or contractor with which the Recipient contracts must
not have any role or relationship with the Recipient, that, in effect, substantially limits the Recipient's
ability to exercise its rights, including cancellation rights, under the contract, based on all the facts and
circumstances.

C-26. Public Records

The Recipient acknowledges that, except for a subset of information regarding archaeological records,
the Project records and locations are public records including, but not limited to, all of the submissions
accompanying the application, all of the documents incorporated by reference into this Agreement, and all
reports, disbursement requests, and supporting documentation submitted hereunder.

C-27. Recipient's Responsibility for Work



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D 181130700
Page 23 of 26

The Recipient shall be responsible for all work and for persons or entities engaged in work performed
pursuant to this Agreement including, but not limited to, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, and
providers of services. The Recipient shall be responsible for responding to and disposing of any and all
disputes arising out of its contracts for work on the Project. The State Water Board will not mediate
disputes between the Recipient and any other entity concerning responsibility for performance of work.

C-28. Records

Without limitation of the requirement to maintain Project accounts in accordance with GAAP, the
Recipient agrees to:

(a) Establish an official file for the Project, which shall adequately document all significant actions
relative to the Project.

(b) Establish separate accounts, which will adequately and accurately depict all amounts received
and expended on the Project, including all assistance funds received under this Agreement.

(c) Establish separate accounts, which will adequately depict all income received which is
attributable to the Project, specifically including any income attributable to assistance funds
disbursed under this Agreement.

(d) Establish an accounting system, which will accurately depict final total costs of the Project,
including both direct and Indirect Costs.

(e) Establish such accounts and maintain such records as may be necessary for the State to fulfill
federal reporting requirements, including any and all reporting requirements under federal tax
statutes or regulations.

(f) Ifa Force Account is used by the Recipient for the Project, accounts will be established which
reasonably document all employee hours charged to the Project and the associated tasks
performed by each employee.

(9) Maintain separate books, records, and other material relative to the Project.

(h) Retain such books, records, and other material for itself and for each contractor or subcontractor
who performed work on this Project for a minimum of seven (7) years after Work Completion.
The Recipient shall require that such books, records, and other material be subject at all
reasonable times (at a minimum during normal business hours) to inspection, copying, and audit
by the State Water Board, the Bureau of State Audits, the Internal Revenue Service, the
Governor, or any authorized representatives of the aforementioned, and shall allow interviews
during normal business hours of any employees who might reasonably have information related
to such records. The Recipient agrees to include a similar right regarding audit, interviews, and
records retention in any subcontract related to the performance of this Agreement. The
provisions of this section shall survive the term of this Agreement.

C-29. Related Litigation

The Recipient is prohibited from using Grant Funds to pay costs associated with any litigation the
Recipient pursues. Regardless of whether the Project or any eventual related project is the subject of
litigation, the Recipient agrees to complete the Project funded by the Agreement or to repay all Grant
Funds plus interest to the State Water Board.

C-30. Rightsin Data



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 24 of 26

The Recipient agrees that all data, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, computer programs, operating
manuals, notes, and other written or graphic work produced in the performance of this Agreement are
subject to the rights of the State as set forth in this section. The State shall have the right to reproduce,
publish, and use all such work, or any part thereof, in any manner and for any purposes whatsoever and
to authorize others to do so. If any such work is copyrightable, the Recipient may copyright the same,
except that, as to any work which is copyrighted by the Recipient, the State reserves a royalty-free,
nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use such work, or any part thereof, and
to authorize others to do so, and to receive electronic copies from the Recipient upon request.

C-31. State Cross-Cutter Compliance

The Recipient represents and certifies that, to the extent applicable, it is in compliance with the following
conditions precedent and agrees that it will continue to maintain compliance during the term of this
Agreement:

(a) Agricultural Water Management Plan Consistency. A Recipient that is an agricultural water
supplier as defined by section 10608.12 of the Water Code must comply with the Agricultural
Water Management Planning Act. (Wat. Code, § 10800 et seq.)

(b) California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Implementation and construction activities must
comply with CEQA and potentially other environmental review requirements, including the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). Proceeding with work subject to CEQA and/or NEPA
without environmental clearance by the State Water Board shall constitute a breach of a material
provision of this Agreement.

(c) Contractor and Subcontractor Requirements. (Labor Code, §§ 1725.5, 1771.1, and 1773.3.) For
public works contracts, the Recipient acknowledges that the Recipient’s contractor(s) and
subcontractor(s) must register with the Department of Industrial Relations. If the Recipient is the
awarding body for a public works contract, the Recipient acknowledges that it is required to
provide notice of the public works contract to the Department of Industrial Relations.

(d) Delta Plan Consistency Findings. (Wat. Code, § 85225 and Cal. Code of Regulations, title 23, §
5002.) If the Recipient is a state or local public agency and the proposed action is covered by the
Delta Plan, the Recipient will submit a certification of project consistency with the Delta Plan to
the Delta Stewardship Council prior to undertaking the implementation/construction project
associated with this Project.

(e) State Water Board’'s Drought Emergency Water Conservation regulations. (Cal. Code of
Regulations, Title 23, chapter 2, article 22.5.) The Recipient will include a discussion of its
compliance and implementation in progress reports submitted pursuant to this Agreement.

(f) SBx7-7: Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction (Wat. Code, § 10608 et seq.). SBx7-7
conditions the receipt of a water management grant or loan for urban water suppliers on
achieving gallons per capita per day reduction targets with the end goal of a twenty percent (20%)
reduction by 2020. The Recipients that are urban water suppliers shall provide proof of
compliance with SBx7-7.

(9) Urban Water Demand Management. (Wat. Code, § 10631.5.) If the Recipient is an “urban water
supplier” as defined by Water Code section 10617, the Recipient certifies that it is implementing
water demand management measures approved by the Department of Water Resources.

(h) Urban Water Management Planning Act. (Wat. Code, § 10610 et seq.) If the Recipient is an
“urban water supplier” as defined by Water Code section 10617, the Recipient certifies that it has
submitted an Urban Water Management Plan that has been deemed complete by the Department



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 25 of 26

of Water Resources and is in compliance with that plan. This shall constitute a condition
precedent to this Agreement.

(i) Urban Water Supplier. (Wat. Code, §§ 526 and 527.) If the Recipient is an urban water supplier
as defined by Water Code section 10617, it shall have complied and maintain compliance with
sections 526 and 527 of the Water Code relating to installation of meters and volumetric charging.

(i) Water Diverter. (Wat. Code, § 5103.) If the Recipient is a water diverter, the Recipient must
maintain compliance by submitting monthly diversion reports to the Division of Water Rights of
the State Water Board.

(k) Water Quality Compliance. The Recipient shall ensure that the Project shall maintain consistency
with Division 7 of the Water Code (commencing with section 13000).

(I) Water Quality Monitoring. If water quality monitoring is required as part of the Project, the
Recipient shall collect and report water quality monitoring data to the State Water Board in a
manner that is compatible and consistent with surface water monitoring data systems or
groundwater monitoring data systems administered by the State Water Board.

{m) Wild and Scenic Rivers. The Recipient shall ensure that the Project will not have an adverse
effect on the values upon which a wild and scenic river or any other river is afforded protections
pursuant to the California Wild and Scenic Rivers Act or the federal Wild and Scenic Rivers Act.

C-32. State Water Board Action; Costs and Attorney Fees

Any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in derogation of any other legal or
equitable remedy available to the State Water Board as a result of breach of this Agreement by the
Recipient, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the Project, and exercise of any
remedy provided by this Agreement by the State Water Board shall not preclude the State Water Board
from pursuing any legal remedy or right which would otherwise be available. In the event of litigation
between the parties hereto arising from this Agreement, it is agreed that each party shall bear its own
costs and attorney fees.

C-33. Termination; Immediate Repayment; Interest

(a) This Agreement may be terminated at any time, at the option of the State Water Board, upon any
Event of Default after such violation has been called to the attention of the Recipient and after
failure of the Recipient to bring itself into compliance with the provisions of this Agreement within
a reasonable time as established by the Division,

(b) In the event of such termination, the Recipient agrees, upon demand, to immediately repay to the
State Water Board an amount equal to Grant Funds disbursed hereunder, accrued interest,
penalty assessments, and additional payments. In the event of termination, interest shall accrue
on all amounts due at the highest legal rate of interest from the date that notice of termination is
mailed to the Recipient to the date all moneys due have been received by the State Water Board.

C-34. Timeliness

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

C-35. Unenforceable Provision

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the

parties agree that all other provisions of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected
thereby.



Kashia Elementary School District
Agreement No. SWRCB0000000000D181130700
Page 26 of 26

C-36. Venue

The State Water Board and the Recipient hereby agree that any action arising out of this Agreement shall
be filed and maintained in the Superior Court in and for the County of Sacramento, California.

C-37. Waiver and Rights of the State Water Board

Any waiver of rights by the State Water Board with respect to a default or other matter arising under this
Agreement at any time shall not be considered a waiver of rights with respect to any other default or
matter.

Any rights and remedies of the State Water Board provided for in this Agreement are in addition to any
other rights and remedies provided by law.



Second Interim
Kashia Elementary DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 49 70888 0000000
Sonoma County For the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Form CI

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards. (Pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 33129 and 42130)

Signed: Date:

District Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the governing board.

To the County Superintendent of Schools:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the governing board

of the school district. (Pursuant to EC Section 42131)

Meeting Date: March 13, 2019 Signed: -

President of the Governing Board

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the
subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Patti Pomplin Telephone: 707-321-5849

Title: Business Manager E-mail: ppomplin@kashiaesd.org

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSl). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

Not |

[CRITERIA AND STANDARDS - Met  Met
1 Average Daily Attendance Funded ADA for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years has
| not changed by more than two percent since first interim.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: ci (Rev 05/08/2018) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 3/6/2019 11:36 AM



Kashia Elementary

Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

49 70888 0000000

Sonoma County For the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Form CI
Not
CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met  Met
2 Enroliment Projected enroliment for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal
years has not changed by more than two percent since first interim. X
3 ADA to Enrollment Projected second period (P-2) ADA to enrollment ratio for the current
and two subsequent fiscal years is consistent with historical ratios. X
4 Local Control Funding Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
Formula (LCFF) Revenue fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since first X
interim.
5 Salaries and Benefits Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total
unrestricted general fund expenditures has not changed by more X
than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.
6a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more X
than five percent since first interim.
" 6b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim. X
7 Ongoing and Major if applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required
Maintenance Account contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e., nla
restricted maintenance account).
8 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard |
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X
9a Fund Balance Projected general fund balance will be positive at the end of the
current and two subsequent fiscal years. X
9b Cash Balance Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the
current fiscal year. X
10 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements X
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes

S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program

audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first X
interim that may impact the budget?

S2 Using One-time Revenues Are there ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time B
to Fund Ongoing revenues that have changed since first interim by more than five X
Expenditures percent?

S3 Temporary Interfund Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?

Borrowings X

| S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.q., parcel taxes, forest X
reserves)?

S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or -
transfers to or from the general fund to cover operating deficits,
changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more than 5% X
for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: ¢i (Rev 05/08/2018)

Page 2 of 3

Printed: 3/6/2019 11:36 AM



Kashia Elementary

Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

49 70888 0000000

Sonoma County For the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Form Cl
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the district have long-term (multiyear) commitments or debt

agreements? X

* If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent B
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2017-18) annual nla
payment?

+ If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments o
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or nla
are they one-time sources?

S7a Postemployment Benefits Does the district provide postemployment benefits other than
Other than Pensions pensions (OPEB)? X

+ If yes, bave there been changes since first interim in OPEB —

liabilities? nia
S7b Other Self-insurance Does the district operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., workers'
Benefits compensation)? X

+ If yes, have there been changes since first interim in self-
insurance liabilities? n/a

S8 Status of Labor Agreements| As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiatﬁné i

still unsettled for:

+ Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X

+ Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X

+ Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S8 Labor Agreement Budget | For negotiations settled since first interim, per Government Code
Revisions Section 3547.5(c), are budget revisions still needed to meet the costs

of the collective bargaining agreement(s) for:

» Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 3) n/a

 Classified? (Section S8B, Line 3) | _nla

S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the general fund projected to have a
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X
ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current
fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the general fund? X
A2 Independent Position Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
Control X
| A3 | Declining Enroliment Is enroliment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? X
A4 New Charter Schools Are any new charter schools operating in district boundaries that are |
Impacting District impacting the district's enroliment, either in the prior or current fiscal X
Enrollment year?
A5 Salary Increases Exceed Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the
COLA current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in

salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected state X

funded cost-of-living adjustment?

AB Uncapped Health Benefits Does the district provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health o

benefits for current or retired employees? X

A7 Independent Financial Is the district’s financial system independent from the county office
System system? X
| A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes,

provide copies to the COE, pursuant to EC 42127.6(a). X

A9 Change of CBO or Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
Superintendent business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: ci (Rev 05/08/2018)

Page 3 of 3

Printed: 3/6/2019 11:36 AM



Kashia Elementary
Sonoma County

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

2018-19 Second Interim
General Fund
Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted

' i Board Approved |
Object | Original Budget | Operating Budget
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) B)
/ENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 191,591.00 206,518.00 |
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 B0,733.00 118,240.00 |
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 I 9,497.00 7,608.00 |
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 109,500.00 103,421.00 |
| 5) TOTAL, REVENUES 391,321.00 435,783.00 |
B. EXPENDITURES
|
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 79,561,00 81,864.00 |
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 31,525.00 23,200.00 l
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 24.789.00 26,962.00
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 26,694.00 32,293.00
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 222,248.00 225.138.00
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7209
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 | 0.00 |
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 | 0.00 I
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 384,817.00 | 389,457,00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
_FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 650400  46,326.00
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 | 0.00 | 0.00
1 Transfers Out 7600-7629 | 0.00 0.00
2) Other Sources/Uses |
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 |
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 |
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 000 |
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES o_o_o___! 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 06/07/2018)

Page 1

49 70888 0000000
Form 011
| Projected Year | Difference | % DIff
Actuals To Date Totals (Col B&D) ‘ (E/B)
(C) | (D) | (E) {F)
| | ‘
106,473.55 | 207,768.00 | 1,252.00 | 0.6%
| |
151,124.42 165,168.00 | 36,928.00 | 31.2%
|
1,178.24 | 7,986.00 380.00 | 5.0%
108,362.62 | 109,073.00 | 5,652.00 | 5.5%
368,138,683 479,995.00 |
39,206.92 | 94,564.00 (12,700.00)|  -15.5%
12,480.00 ' 27,500.00 - (4,300.00) -18.5%
10,397.21 27,155.00 (193.00)| -0.7%
15,194.90 39,100.00 (6,807,00)} -21.1%
88,057.07 209,556.00 15,582.00 | 6.9%
18,363,00 18,363.00 (18,363.00)| New
|
0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
|
0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
183,789.10 416,238.00 |
|
|
|
184,349.73 6375700 |
0.00 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
0.00 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
0.00 000, 000 0.0%
0.00 0.00

Printed: 2/28/2019 3:20 PM



2018-19 Second Interim

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: fundl-a (Rev 06/07/2018)

Page 2

Kashia Elementary General Fund 49 70888 0000000
Sonoma County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Board Approved Projected Year ‘ Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals {Col B & D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes {A) | (B) C (D) {E) | {F)
] | _—
"INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND | [
-« ANCE (C + D4) - 6.504.00 | 46,326.00 ' 184,349.73 63,757.00 | i
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES | |
1) Beginning Fund Balance | | |
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 216,462.00 | 235,863.00 235,863.00 | 0.00 0.0%
|
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0%
¢) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 216,462.00 235,863.00 235,863.00 ] |
| 1
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‘ 0.00 | 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beglnning Balance (F1c + F1d) 216,462.00 235,863.00 II 235,863.00 ‘
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 222,966.00 282,189.00 | 299.620.00
| |
Components of Ending Fund Balance ‘ |
a) Nonspendable |
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 |
|
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 |
Prepaid ltems 9713 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 |
All Others 9719 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 |
b) Restricted 9740 108.855,00 108,855.00 | 89.700.00 |
c) Committed !
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 |
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 |
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 |
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 67,000.00 | 67,000.00 67,000.00 |
1
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 8780 | 47,111.00 | 106,334.00 | 142,920,00

Printed: 2/28/2019 3:20 PM



OC’6LA Jojenojed 4407 dvOol Nd 15°16102/82/C

%0561 %0G°61 %0E €T %00°L2 %61°82 SIS A0.d W] 10 2583I0U| 0] 28eUDDId JeIA 1UBLINT)
SEY'QE S LEVYE S €.6%¢ S 00T'St S 91§'sy S 1e3A 4y
2y ul Sujpuny Jue.d uoIeIUOUOD pue eluRWS|ddNs PR1BWIISD JBIA JUBLIN)
€¢-7T0¢ [4aivder4 T¢-0T0T 07-610C 61-8T0C
S3JIAUIS JIAOHdIAI HO ISYIHINI OL1 IDV.INIDYI B INVHD NOILYHLINIINGD B IVINIWI14dNS ANVININNS
'G da)s ‘Buipund JUD.IL UOHDIJUSIUO) ¥ |DIUBLIZIAANS Pa3oUNIST 10 3bDIU2I5d Ayjpuoipiodo.d winwiuiw 3y} 310iN3j02 U3YY ‘P=> DE dIS 4
D34 ¥ 3y} Ul SJUBPNIS |[D 10§ PaPIADI S3IINIBS JIND PINOIAW] JO PASDAIINS 3G ISNL SIUSPNIS PAIDIANpPUn 10] s33in435 Yo1ym Aq abpjuadiad,
%0561 %05°6T %0E°€C %00°LT %61°8C
{Anua dvD110f)
[9]/1s]
5901 dA0Ldw) 10 asedudu| 01 a8eUddIad  8/Y
L0671 I84°TTZ STETIC 9W6TIT 89/°£0T uawapiug uj-asoyd 4477
Ommrﬁw.ﬁ Nwm\WNH mesHNH .VooaﬁwH ONQ\HmH UoDIOUSUDL | ¥ Judwanuiuwf jouononsuy peyatiu] SIPIIIXI
‘[6] ss3} 3uawapIu3 uy-asoid 4477
Suipung aseg g
SEV'SE LEV'VE €/6'6¢€ 00T'sy 91S'sY (Anua dv140f)
{{1] uaiyy p>[g] ssajun)
{v] snid [z] spun4 juel) uo11eIIUIIUO) pue [ejuawd|ddng palewisy ‘g
%00°00T %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T 3104 buipunf 4vo
(599°6) {€99°0T) (tzT'9) = =
2101 buipunf 4vo , (€]
Sutpuny juesn uoilesulUO) R [elUBWSI|ddNS [eUOIPPY Pa1EWIIST ‘B
(599'6) (€99°01) (tzT's) - - [elssat 1] duasagld g
00T'SH 00T'St 00T'St 001'Sh 9TS‘Sh sjidnd |[e 1o $921AUSs UO Juads Sem jeym
anoqe sjidng pajedidnpun Joj sasnipuadx3 (paiewisa) Jeap Jougd 7
SEV'SE LEV'VE €L6'6€ 00T'SY 9TS'Sy L
Suipung jueis uoneJuadUo) B jejuawalddns 198se) 4477 ‘T
€¢-720C 7T-1202 TZ-020T 0Z-6T0C 6T-810C
jueln uone.usIuo) g jrIuswWajddng Aneusiung
:S921A19§ 9A0aduw| 4O aseasdu| 03 38e3uUddIad ¥
6TO0T/TE/T WSl pUZ 6T-8TOT - (8880L) Ae3uawa|3 eiysey




Z 6LA Joenoed 4407

Aewuwng

Wd ¢5:1610¢/82/C

(suondwnssy wou) 1eniooy

- L ) - {(£92°5) (veoy) (jenuooy B3 10l SS3f Y-
BUWSNpY 1BBA JOLd VT - 6108
194°S 1682 0866 49841 6TI9T SET'TC (lerusoy ses juaun) snid z-o)
101900y JBBA JuBLIND V4T - ZL08
194°S S 1687 S 086%6 S TIIvr S 6II9T S 89¢'SsT (sesodind uonenoed 449710) Y43
%00000068°ST %00000068°SZ %00000068°52 %00000068°SZ %00000068°ST %L9YTS068°5Z Z-d - JlWr] anusasy paysnipy jo %
%00000068°S7 %00000068°SZ %00000068°SZ %00000068°SZ %00000068°SZ %L9YT5068°ST [enuuy - JiwI enusAsy pajsnipy 40 %
s{ielag vdd
£06°LTC 18L°TTZ S STE‘CIC S 9r67IT S 89/L°40Z S bZs'0sT juswspiuy uj-aseyd [ejoL
- S - S - S - S - S - S Buipund 4477 03 SS3Ix3 Ul YdJ ;5597
- $ - S - [y - [y - [ - S SaXDJ $S3IXF :SSIT
ply 2ispg-UoN Pty 2ispg-uon p1v 21SDg-UoN P!y 2ispg-uoN piy 2Ispg-uoN Py 2IsDg-uoN SMIDIS piy 21s0g
L06'(1T 184712 $ sieTie $ 9v6TIz $ 890107 $ v78'08T _ ONIANNS TYLOL
TE9'80T 105’901 ZIry01 s9ezot 85€°001T £87'001 nojI-ul Jo jou saxe Ayadoid
- - - - - - saxe ] Auadold 4o naiT-ul - 9608
TE9'80T T0S'90T TIv'p0T S9€'70T 8SE00T €8%'00T saxe| Apedold - 6808 O3 1208
'§80IN0S dNUBASY [BO0T
19L'S 168°L 086’6 [4%% 721 61191 89€°ST (sssodind uonejnoled 440740 ydJ
E 5 = e sjeoliobale) - 0658 % LLES
= = = - - - aleygiie4- | 108
STS'€0T S 68€'L6 S £T6'L6 S 69796 $ 16716 S EL6'%9 PlY 81e1S - |08
£2-220C 27-120T 12-0202 0Z-6T0T 61-8T07 8T-/T0T
3po) 13lg0 Ad 4497 Jo sjusuodiuoy
LOG'LTE $ TI8LITC $ SIEZIZ S 9r6‘TTe S 89/°L0Z S 17808t juswiapiuly 4497|8304
- - - - - - Pl S}€]S [BUOHIPPY
- - - - - - 19b1e| A1sA00ay d1WoU0D]
- - - - - - sjusunsnipy snosue||@osiy
- = i = £89°8T 049" Buipung des) tes A Juaung
%00T %001 %00T %00T %00T %ELTVYI96°T % deo
: = - : - 8619 (Ajuo jouonouniofuy) des) Jaye paap Bululelusy
296661 756661 756°66T 89£°40C 180681 PST9LT 100]4
INdL 3Nyl INdL Nyl 3Sv4 3IS7v4 {z-d Ad) BINWIOA Job1e | uo paseg pspung
L06°LTT 18LTTT S SIETTe S 9ve'CIT S 89/°40T S T0'L8T jobie|
:sjuauoduwion uolsuel |
L06°LTT 18LT1T STETTIT 9v6'7TT 892°10C 7T0'L8T jobie] [ejo)
8L [4:7 8L 8L 8L [4:7 suo-ppy
018'LT 80€°LT 69V TT 655V TIT'St 6EV'9T jUeJS uoienuaduoy
ST9'LT 6TT°LT %0581 TrS0T YOv'0T £19'VT Juein |eyuswaiddng
- - - - T () juswnsnipy uedg epeis
069'T8T 295941 095'TLT ¥90°2L9T 69t°191 681°GST juels) aseg
%067 %26'7 %98°7 %9b°E %0L°E %95°T uojejuawbny ' ¥700
:sjusuodwon jabie)
€2-220¢ 7eT-120T 12-020¢ 0¢-6107 61-8T0C 8T-LTOT
duipung jo Alewwng
610Z/TIE/T JUZ 6I-8T0Z - (8880/) AJRIUSWA[T BIySe)

suoRdwinssy |esiaAluf) Jojenajed 4377




JZ'6LA lojeinojed 4407

Atewwing Nd 25 16102/8¢/C
%05°6T %0561 %0€°€T %00°LT %6T°3C %30T ’S 3n0adw 1o 3se3.0U| 03 38e3U32194 JBSA JUILING
SEV'SE S LEP'PE $ €L6'6€ S 00T'st S 9IS'Sy S 7S0'1E $ 1U3DUO0D pue |ejuawa(ddns pajewsa 1eah WsiIny
€2-720¢ 72-1202 12-0702 07-610T 61-8T07 8T-£L10T
saoInBS
Snoidul] Jo 35e313U] 03 38EIUaDIad d¥D]
- - - vI'T = - (Y@y 1emoy ss9| yqy papund) sousieyiq pepund
05°0T 05°0T 0S°0T 0S'0T ¥9'TT 16 vav |lemay [ejo)
= = x = = - Z1-6 sepel9
0S¢ 0ST 057 0S¢ (444 89 8-/ S8peID
00T 00T 00T 00T €L0 780 9-v sepeso
002 00t 00°L 002 61'8 16°G €)1 sepein
(A1uQ ea4 wdun)) YAV TVYNLOV
05°0T 05°0T 0S'0T 9’11 9Tt 176 vav papung jgjoy
0s°0T 0S°0T 0501 v9°TT Vo'TT we vay jooyss jews Airessasap jejo)
s - e - - = B Z1-6 SOpeID
0S¢ (1194 0S¢ [4ar4 e 89°C 8-/ S8pEe!D
00T 00T 00T €L°0 €L°0 80 9-¥ sepelo
00, 002 002 6T'8 61°8 16'S €-M1 sepeio
1eeA JusLny Jeaf juaiing J89A JUBLIND 189/ JoU4 JeeA Jusuny aeaf JusiinD vavy jooyas jjews AuessadapN
x - = - - = vay jueis aseg pajsnipy [ejoy
= = = - - = -6 sepels)
- - = = - - 8-/ sopelo
- - - - = * O-p sapels)
= = - = - - €)1 sepei
1884 Juauny 1894 Juauny 1BIA Jualiny AB8A juauny JB8A Juaung JBBA Juauny vyavy wtmhw oseg bwuwa.\b<
vav aanNnd
%00TE 26 %00TE 76 %00€9'70T %00TH"S0T %00EE"80T %0000°00T JUBID UONBIUBDUOY 'Y, Buijjoy
%00TET6 %00TET6 %00£9°70T %00TH°SOT %00EE 80T %0000°00T jues9 |eyusweiddng ‘o, burjjoy
a zr 143 43 . ST 4 #unoQ jidngd pajedjdnpun jejoL
- - - E - 2 wno9 jidng psjeoiidnpun 300
45 48 [43 48 ST 4 wnog idng pareoydnpun
€T €I €T €I zr zr Justwjjoiuz [ejoy
- - - - - - Juswijo;uzg 300
€1 €1 €T €T Ay T jusuwoiuz
uonejndod jidng pajesidnpun
€2-2202 TT-TL0T 12-020¢ 07-610C 61-8T0C 8T-/T02
:O_um_ancn_ juapnjis jo EmEE:w
6L0¢/1E/T Uz 61-810Z - (8880/) Aiejuawaj3 eiysey
suonduwinssy [esisAiun J03e)najed 4471




OZ'6LA 1ojenoe) 4407 sydei Wd 25-16102/82/C
1UBID) UOIRIIUDIUO)) B

ueln |euswajddng m %CT " TIT'STS

wLwisnipy
ueds speiom

[ooyss

||lews AzessadaN

/ueto aseg m 6T-8T0¢

%0 ‘ T8LS

%SG 9A0QR 2( 1SN 33e1Udd19( |1dnd paiedndnpun
qe oq I P 1Anpun,

juels aseg
0LY'TITS duepuany
Juelg aseg Ajteg
paisnipy aSeiany
915°stS w_ ) UINoA 121504
uornenusiuo) ey e 3WO0OU| MOT

%1UBID C_O_umgucmuco.u

sJauiea ysidu3
uno) jidnd paledydnpun

B |ejuswsa|ddng
_

8L$
~suo-ppy

[9AS7
plemy €1-¢T

89£°£0TS  :4421.139YVL1VIOL

897102 S jexo|

8L s {uonzeuodsuel] g ogj|]) suo-ppy

%80T CTT'ST S JUEBID UOIIEIIUIUO)

%80T Y0Ov'0C S ueln [ejuaWwalddng

T S juswisn(py ueds apeln

vav v9'11 69v'19T S Jooyds |jews Auessadsp / 1uels aseg
6T-810¢C

a8ed siy1 uo saiydess pue speyd syl 4o

uo moadn 1 ainn 1pad 1paci o 2Siinim

Juswia|ug 3984e] 447 Jo syusuodwo)

VINYO4 DNIGNNS TO¥LNOD T¥201)
wiisi) puz 61-8T07 - (8880) Aiejuawag ersey|




Kashia School District
31510 Skaggs Spring Road

P.O. Box 129 Stewarts Point, CA 95480
707-785-9682 phone 707-785-2802 fax

March 13, 2019 Board Meeting

Updated 2018-19 School Calendar

November gth Smoke Day — J13a Denied
Calendar changed from 16 to 15 days

January 17th Power Outage — No J13a Submitted
Calendar changed from 18 to 17 days

February 27th & 28th Power Outage/slides — Submitting J13a
Calendar had no change pending approval of J13a

March 29th was a storm day — now a school day
Calendar changed from 20 to 21 days

May 24th was a storm day — now a school day
Calendar changed from 21 to 22 days

Changed Trimester days to:

gt 59 days
and = 63 days
3rd = 58 days

Added rust color to emergency closure days
Changed narrative under “Storm Days”

Pending adoption March 13, 2019

— Pending




KASHIA UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

MASTER CALENDAR
2018-2019

EARLY RELEASE EVERY WEDNESDAY

Ml T]w]|TH]| F

M| T|W]TH] F

JULY 0 | JANUARY 18/17 |
2 3 4 5 6]4-Holiday-Independence Day 1 2 3 42-4 winter Break
9 10 11 12 13 7 8 9 10 117 - School Resumes
16 17 18 19 20 14 15 16 18[17 - Power Outage
23 24 25 26 27 21 22 23 24 25(21-Holiday-Martin Luther King ©
30 31 28 29 30 31
AUGUST 8 | FEBRUARY 15 |
1 2 3 1
6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8|18-Holiday-President's Day.
13 14 15 ; | 16- Staff Returns 11 12 13 14 15]19-Holiday-Lincoln's Day Altern:
20( 21] 22 23 24 (22- Students Return 1§ .fl.g ' ey sggz: __i 18-22-President's Week
27 28 29 30 31 25 26 27-28 Power Outage/Slide - Penc
SEPTEMBER 18 | MARCH 20/21 |
‘“ﬂ 4 5 6 7 |3-Holiday-Labor Day 1
10 11 12 13 14 4 5 6 7 8
17 18 19 20| . 2121 - Native American Day 11 12 13 14 15
24| 25 26 27 28 18 19 20 21| 22
25| 26| 27| 28 |lBB 29-storm Day - USE for Nov 9
OCTOBER 23 | APRIL 17 |
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5
8 9 10 11 12 8
15 16 17 18 19 ' g j 15-19-Spring Break
22 23 24 25 26
29 30 31
NOVEMBER 16/15 | 21/22 |
- i 2 1] 2] 3
Smoke Day - Denied 6 7 8 9 10
16]12-Holiday-Veteran's Day 13 14 15 16 17
23]19-23-Holiday No Students,Teachers, or 10 Mo. 20 21 22 23 24-Storm Day - Use for Jan 17
30]22-23-Holiday-Thanksgiving & Admissions Day 27 28 29 30 31|27-Holiday-Memorial Day
14 | JUNE 10 |
3 4 5 6 7 3 4 5 6 7
11 12 13 14 10 11 12 13 14-Last Day of School
18] 19| 20|  21|25-Holiday-Christinas Day 17| 18] 19| 20| 21
25| 7126] 27|  28|21-31-Winter Break 24| 25| 26| 27| 28
(87 WORK AND/OR PAID DAY_S , _ 1 HOL[DAYS Storm Days: Closed Nov 9 - smoke - denied
Total Work Days |10 Mo. [Certiﬂcated 184 10 Mo.| 10 Closed Jan 17 - power outage
12 Mo. 11 Closed Feb 27 & 28th pending
K-8 " MHoliday D.O. 12 \Jse March 29th & May 24th to make up
TRIMESTER ENDS staff Development closure days
(First 59 [November 16 First Day of School
Second| 63 |March 15 Storm Days USED TOTALS'_[‘I}DENT
Third 58 |June 14 Emergency Closures DAYS
First November 180
180 Second March
Third June 14
Fourth Board Adoption: 05/09/2018
Updated: March 13, 2019



L | VEL-I wioy

« PUNS JOOYIS 8JRJS oy] WL JOLJSID [00YIS 8y} 0} SjuswUoEodde Jo Bupew
oy ioj ieak [easy jey) Joj eauepuage Ajiep abesane fenjoe sy} aq o} pawaap aq jleys esuepusye Ajlep sbeisne pajeLSs aly| JOUISIP YONS Jo souBpuBKe Aep abeiare BYj SIS [fRYS UOINASUS lqNy
40 Juapusjuiiadng 8y} 'sjooyds o Juepusjuiiadns Aunod sy} pue JoUISIp 8y} J0 pieoq BuiLIBAOD By} Jo SiequIBW By} JO SYABDIYE By} AG UORONLSU| g J0 JuspuajuLedns oy Jo UOJOBSHES Bl 0} UMOYS 8] jjBYyS
398) Yojum ‘pesepuss 8q 0} Jeaf [easy Aue 1oy JouIsIp ey} 10j sauepusle Arep ebeiene uo podas ajeindoe ue Joj sjqissodu) jj Buryew ‘peAosjsap 1o Jsoj usaq aney Jousip Aue o spiodas souepusye Aue JaAsusyM,
'16€9¥ UONOaS O3 0} Juensind pew s| jsenbal Siy| "SPI0Jal BOUBPUSHE JO UOHONASIP JO SSO| 8U) 0} ANP PAILIBA 8] JOLUED

12U} aouepualie Jo naj| Ul 80UBPUBHE PRJRWNSS JO 8SN 8y} Buisanbay *|6Egy UOKISS DI Uj PaqLOSEP SE PRROASIP 10 IS0 USAQ SABY SPIOOB) BOUBPUSHE USUM :SANOITN IONVANILLY GIA0¥LSIA ¥O 1SOT O

1By} sisanbal asea10ap [BUSIEI '8ZY UOHIAS ‘G Bl YOO PUE Z6£9Y UOKISS O O} juensind SOUBPUSHE U} 85ESI00P [BUSIELl B Paousliadxe Ing uado 1day a1om S|00YDS SJ0L JO BUO LBUAY :3SVIYIIA TVINTLYW I

"Isenbal S|} Yim pajeroosse sejep ey Buinp ejuiojied 10 Jouisrog ay) Ag Aousbisw3 o sjeig e Jo uonele|osq & sem aiay) []

“Aousbiaws ay Jo ainjeu sy} 0} aNp Pasealdap A|[elietew SEM SIUBPUSHE J00YDS YIIYM BuLNp 2 UORISS Ul SeIep PUE (S)|00Y9S Paquasap sy} o) sjuaLiuouodde

440740 uoeIndwod sy} ul souepude Jo SAEp pajewlise U Jo 8SN SZLOYINE ||im Jsanbal siy) JO [eA0IddY Z6£9H UOROSS D3 JO SUOISIACID SY) )M SIUEPIOOIE Ul SI BIUBPUSHE J0 SKEp [BIMIOR JO} 83UBpUS)E

Jo sAep palewiss Jo UONNYISANS Joj Jsenbal By "gzy U0HDSS 'S SIL 'HOD PUE ZEEYY UORISS D3 0} Juensind SOUBPUSHE Ui 9SES.108p [ELSJEW & paousLiadxa 1sanba) au Ul papnioul 3YIS YOB8 Jey) MOUS JSNW JoL)SIp

[0040s Sy} UM SBYIS 1€ JOU Inq B0 JO BUO JOj §}SBNbB) 9S88103P JEUSIE “90UBPUSHE U] 8SEBI08D [EIBIELL B PBOLBLIBAXS SJ0YM & SE JOLSIP [0040S DU} Jeu} SJesiSUOWaP ISNL JOLISIP [00UOS SU) UILYIM SBIS 00U0S |2 8pnjoul

'Jsenbal siu} yim pajetoosse sejep siy Sulnp elwioyied Jo Jousenog ) Aq Aousbiawg Jo 8181  Jo UojeIeoa( B SeM 818y [§]

'bas 19 ‘00z9y

uondes 3 0} juensind sAep asoy} uo pasayo Ajeinbas Usaq sABY PINOM JBL) SINUIL |EUORINISU| BU) PUB SABP BU} 10} Sl [UORINASUI J0) JIPSID UIB)GO pue fyeuad sjqeoydde Jnouynm (zzy| ¥ uonoas H3 Jod) yay
Jo uoneindwos au uy skep asay) pieBaisip o) Y37 sy} sazpoyine 1sanbal siy Jo [eacsddy Aousbiaws sy J0 ainjeu sy} 0} anp ‘pals]| S8ep 8U) U0 PasOld aam (S)i00yas sy} Jey 19B} 8y 0} prebial Jnoyum (s)jooyos
8U} 10} § UORJSS Ul pa}ipald 2Ll [BUORON.SUI puB paulBlulew 3q pinoys syuswuoiiodde 4497 'ZzyLy U0BIsS O3 Ul PAGUOSSp SUOHIPUOD JO 9SNeIsq Pasold B19m S|004IS I0W JO SUO UBYM :J¥NSOTI JOOHIS O]

:1S3NDIY SIHL O1 318VIINddY (SINDILIGNOD i 1¥vd

$2YS 10095 309 10998 []
SJIS |00Y0S 300 iV O
:Bummo;jo} su} 40 8UO BS00Y)

S3YS |0040S JoUSIP 19919 [
S3IS [0040S JOUISIP [IY [3]
:Buimoyjo} au} jo sUo aso0y)

TO0HIS ¥aLN¥vYHO O (309) NOILYDNA3 20 301440 ALNNOD O 10141810 FOOHIS (e ..

:(2ad) y31 apo Ajuo 8s004D) 1SINOIY SIHL OL I19VIITddV NOILYIWHOANI 3 LIS TOOHIS GNV 3dAL Va1 il Lavd
ml_o.moow@cowccor Nwom-mwmﬁoﬁ _ma_oc_‘_n_bcwvcmuctma:w uosuyor saduel
TIVA-3 INOHA | F1UL 3AYN LOVINOD
08%56 VO . julod spemelg
3000 dIZ 31Y1S AL
BUWOUOS peoy buudg sbbeys oLGle  6ZL Xog Od
IWVN AINNOD 'S834aay
61-8L0¢ UosSuyor ssouel
HY3A WOSH IWYN MOLVHLSININGY HO LINFONZININZENS v371
8880/ 6% ousIg jooyos Alejuswial] eiysey

(318V01ddY 41} ¥IGNNN HILYVYHD '30090 1214181 3009 ALNNOD EALARERN

(W37) AONIOV TYNOILYINAT TvI0T I 13Vd

"o} sju} jo uoia|dwioo ay) BuipseBas uojjewioyul o) TSE°EE |Ted/ee;B)A0G €0-apo WAW/SaRY Je suolsanb payse Ajuanbal) pue sUOIONISUI BY) 0} Jajay  »
"WJOJ Iy} Jwans pinoys Juswiapua (4497) ejnuwuoS Buipuny (00 [907 Z)-y & Buneinojes jo asodind ey} 1o} (¥ay) souepusye Ajiep abessae Juswuoiioddy [ediould Lodas 1By} S|o0yos Auo o
'82¢ UOROBS ‘G 3JILL ‘(40D suoyeinbay Jo epo) elwojed PUB Z6E9Y 'LEESY ‘0029 ‘Z2P Ly SUORIss (D3) 8pod toeanpg o) Juensind Jpeid S} BUOKONLSU PUB S0UBPUSHE JO [eAcidde Lielqo o) pasn sfuuojsiyl e

NOILVIWYONI £S3ND3Y ¥ NOILI3S

4102 ¥38W323d Q3SIATY VELT W04

SNOILIANOJ ADN3O¥IW3 OL 3N IONYANILLY 40 IONVMOTIV ¥O4 1SANDIY

NOILYONG3 40 INJWLEY-73 VINYOL4VD



Z |l vel-r wio4

SOA [ooyos je Jamod oN Ae( | - o|qeieA_UN B)B( SL-y1L02 £10Z509 |o0Yy2S AJBJUBWIB[T BIYSEY
S8A 3pi|S pPNLU - 88U} PSUMOD - [0oYDs je Jomod ON 2102 '0} 8 6 Aenuep 219102 £102s09 [ooyos Alejuaius(3 ewysey |
ON Aljenb Jie ajesun Ajpwauxa pasnes saii Aunod 2102 ‘01 1990190 81-/102 £102509 jooyag Auejuswail elysey|
ON Aljenb Jie sjesun Ajawaixa pasned sali4 8102 ‘6 JoquisAdN 61-8102 £102509 jooyog Alejusis|g eIysey
SBA 3plis pnuw - umop o913 - 96BIN0 Jamod 610Z ‘21 Avenuer 6L-810C £102509 [ooyog Aiejuaws|3 BlySED
ON/S3A aineN saje anso|) , Je3A 1Bosl4 | 8po) jooyds SlLEeN |00Y2S _
pajejey H
JE=ETYS t
E| 3 a o) | g v
("8|0LEXS UB J0j SUOHONLISUI 8y} 0} JoJay || Hed Ui Sj00yds e 1o} AoisiY 81ns0[2 1517) AMOLSIH I¥ASOTD Il Lavd
_
2 610T '8 ® Lg Aenige- 6102 '82 % L¢ Meniged 4 4 081 feuonipel] |  ¢10¢509 looyog AuejusLus(g elysE)
paisenbay skeq | paisanbsy ssleq 8insolD ainso|) Aousbiswz jo (sjereq pasf sAeQ uliing IEpUB[ED adh] als 3p07 00408 BUWEN [00Y2S
JO JaquINN [B10] _ fousbisw3 ujying | sheq AousBlaw3z |. [ooyog ul she¢
| H _ ) e 3 a ) g v

(1senba 81 0} J2pus|ed |00YOS JUBIBYIP oS JO AGED B Uoene 'sJepusjed |004os BULSID 8ABY SaJIS 8y} pUB 'Sals |004IS B|d1NW
doj sj1sanbai 8y} J| Jepus|ed |00yds e jo Adod e YorNy ‘Isenbal siy} Jo} papasuU aJe Saul| O} UBL) 810U J T5E 4 18 W10} |90x3 [eyuawsiddns ay) 8sn) NOILYINHOSNI TOOHDS (Il 1¥Yd

'suofpuoo peod snossbuep se |lam se seeu) pue pnw Buipnjoul seplis ‘eBeino Jemod 0} enp sABp 0M] PESOIS JOLISIP |00YIS By

(eyop Ut 2qu2S8Q) ADNIDYINI 40 FUNLYN | LYVd

JUNSOTI TOOHIS ‘g NOILD3S

102 ¥438W3030 03SIAIY VEL-T WHO4
_ SNOLLIONOD AONTOYIW3 OL 3NA IONVANILLY 40 IONVYMOTTV ¥04 1S3NDIY
NOILYONa3 40 ._.zm_z._.v_”,, 10 VINYO4ITYO

payseny (s)sbed |pyuswsiddng O
(0 uonoag 03 peasold) ajqesl|ddy JoN []




¢l vel-r wio4

"3)IS (SSN) 100403 lews Aiessgoap & jo 8sea ayj uj 10 Aousbuaww Jo B)e)s e Salejoap JouisAoD o} usym Jdeoxs $8] 10 %(E 8 PINOYS JaLeNy,

000 000 000 EI0L
000 %000
000 %000 _
000 %0070 |
000 %00°0
000 %000
(4-0) (D/4) 5597 SINOH KousBlawwg jo sjeg aouepuajy ,JRWIOp, " SINOH 20UBPUAYRY [BLLION,, 3p0Y |00Yds SLEN |00Y0S
| SINOH jO 8sessoy| 1aN 10 %06 131N B0UBPUSHY [Bnjoy Buluiwialaq Joj pasn eleq
“ H .0 _ J 3 a ) g v

("9oUEpUB]E , jlBWJOU, JO UORILLBD &
G ueu) asow ) cserit | fec eeb);A0R e"apo WAW TSN Je ol [90x3 [epuews|ddns ay) asn) “sInoy Ul souepua

U BUIpNjoUl Lo} 3y} Bujs|GLI0S UO UORELLIOJUT J0 SUORINLSU] U} O} Jojey 18anbal SIjj 0] DApaas aie sauy]
1e a4} 8pir0ld) STOOKIS HOIH NOILYNNILNOSD ¥04 NOLLYTINOTVD 3SVIHI3A TVIMILYIN ‘Il LYVd

000 0 00°0 fIEI0L
000 %000 -
000 %00'0 "
000 %000 s
000 %00°0 :
W 000 %000 -
i 000 %00°0 -
00°0 %000 .
000 %00°0 -
000 %000 =
000 %00°0 -
(4-D) sheq wuswuoioddy {D/9) sse7 aouepuany |enpy | AousBiaw3 jo sjeg 30UBpUs)Y JEWION, (Aey1RgQOI0Q) 8po2) [00Yo8 3WEN |00YDS
| O 9sB3IOU| 18N 10 9,06 -Jauienp Buliiwsiaq Jo} pesq seleqg S0UBpUBNY ,|BULION,,
_ H 5] _ E 3 a 9 ] v

UONELLIOJUL 1Of SUONONISU! 8L} 0} 18Joy “1sanbai siy} Jo) Papadu sie sali| 0} Uey) aJow i F5568

("souepuaye ,[ewiou, JO UORIUYSP 8y} BUIPRJUI W0} a4} BURE|dL00 1o

18 8l [89X3 [epsLws|ddns ey 8sn) NOILYINDTVD ISYIVIIA IVNILYIW Il Lovd

payoeny (s}ebed jejusweiddng [
(g uonoag o3 passoid) sjqeoljddy JoN [7]

(lrejop u quosaq) AONIOUIWI 40 IHNLYN i 1HVd
3SV3423Q IVRISLVIN 0 NOILD3S

L10Z 499NID3A dISIATYH 'VEL-T WHOS

SNOILIGNOD AON2DUIW3 OL 3nA IONVANILLY 40 IINYMOTTIY 04 LSINDIY

NOILYONQ3 40 INFWLY" 10 VINHO4IYO



¥ | vEL-r wio4

(*spJ028) J0 80UBSQE BU)} LI BOUBPUBHE BIEWNSS JO SPI0J3] SOUBPUBHE 1oNIISU093) 0] {£80001d 8y} MO[8q 8qUII$8Q) TYSOJ0Nd (Il LUV

(3 uondag o0} pasdoig) sjqeal|ddy joN [3]

Buipniou) pue oy dn

('PeA0.1s8p 10 JS0| SPI0DBI JO JUBIXS PUE SSOUEISWNOID MOJeq 8GU0SE0) STONV. 1SIWNOYID N L8Vd
UM S80UBLLLIOD SpI0dal pakolsap 10 150] auy Aq pasenco pouad sxjus 8Y] 1§INDIY 40 AONNId I 14vd

SQY0JI3Y JONVANILLY GIA0MLSIA HO LSO :Q NOILITS

4102 YIEW3030 Q3SIATY ‘VELT WHOA
SNOILIONOD AONIOYIWI OL INA IONVANILLY 40 IINYMOTIV ¥0d LSIND3Y
NOILYONQ3 40 INJWLY.  Q VINYOAITYD



Gl vel-r wio4

Bio'eoos®sanss "3 GE9T-1CS-20.L M mineg [easiH [eulaixg ‘10j0auq ML sa(ns As|lays  @weN
‘uondes siyy Bunaidwed Joj ejgisuodser EAPIAPUIAYRILLS 07
. | (a1meubig) (swey)
BlUIOED *Aunog BUWOUOS io S43 Jopauq Bl J sa|ng >w=mcw 'SS8UNIM,
- J0 Aep SIL} '8W 810480 (PBULIYE JO) LIOMS puB paqLosgng
(aunieubig) (swen)

COHmc_tmI UaAS)S ‘(s8UBIS3p 10) 5]004OS §0 JUBPUSILLBENS AjLNOT
'Jiisq pue aBpsimouy A Jo 1s8q 8y 0} 1981100 puE o) 8l Jsanbal BuioBaloy U} U] paUIBIU0D SUBWSIES PUE LOIBWIOIL By |

ST00HIS 40 LNIANILINIMINS ALNNOD 40 LIAVAI44Y NIl LYvd

{sinipdtig) {auwen)
COwCLO—, wwocm‘_n_ ‘(saubisap 10) Juspusiuusdng
(s1s8nba1 Jooyos ssLEyYD 0} sjqeoldde >_cov YIZIFOHLNY TOOHIS ¥ILAVHD 40 LINFANILNIMIAANS AS TYAOYHILY : __ E<a

JOUISI |00YDS BIySEY) SN YT Buzogny

(simeubig) (swep)
elIojed Aiunog ewouog © JuBpIsald pieog M %ﬂjg BjOUld Busjiey)) SSeUM
: o fe SILj] ‘8U 8108q (PBULIYIE JO) UI0MS PUB PICILOSGN
6102 Yosey % gl ey s

HABDIYE 1y 23naxs ||eys pieoq Bujuisaob ay) jo siaquaww ay) jo Auolew e jses| Jy

Y — . ’.
AT =
¢ a —~ ! Blould ausjieyD

BZOQleg SuIXej

\%\_@@Ad‘ . 9UOJUY BpUB|D

SSUIBN SIaqWa[y pIedg

SaINjeub|§ siequie]y piEoy

'SpJ093J [BIOWO O Paseq aJe pue snu} sle sjusLua)e)s BuioBaioy ay) 1ey) (wiiye 10) Jeams Agalay * 10U1SIg |00Y0S BIUSED] 10 p1eoq Buiuisnch ay) Jo Auolew e Bunnsuos siaqusw * 3

19nba. e |- SIU $500.d 0} pajs|dWon 3q JSNW MOjaq SUDSS elqeaiidde iy ~ SYIQWIW QNYOE ONINYIAOD TOOHIS NILUYHO ¥O 'NOILYONQ3 40 301440 ALNNOD ‘LOI1SIA TOOHDS 40 LIAYQI44Y I Lyvd

LIAVQi44V '3 NOILO3S

4102 ¥38W3030 A3SIATY ‘VEL- WYOA
SNOILIGNGD AON3D¥3W3 OL 3NA JONVANILLY 40 IINVMOTTV ¥04 LSINDIY

NOILVYONA3F 40 INJNLY" 7d YINYO4YO




Kashia ESD

Board Policy
Gifts, Grants And Bequests

BP 3290

Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Trustees may accept any bequest or gift of money or property on behalf of the
district. While greatly appreciating suitable donations, the Board discourages any gifts which
may directly or indirectly impair its commitment to providing equal educational opportunities for
all district students.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
Before accepting a gift, the Board shall consider whether the gift:
1. Has a purpose consistent with the district's vision and philosophy

2 Begins a program which the Board would be unable to continue when the donated funds
are exhausted

8 Entails undesirable or excessive costs

4, Implies endorsement of any business or product

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

The Board shall carefully evaluate any conditions or restrictions imposed by the donor in light of
district philosophy and operations. If the Board feels the district will be unable to fully satisfy
the donor's conditions, the gift shall not be accepted.

Gift books and instructional materials shall be accepted only if they meet regular district criteria.

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

All gifts, grants and bequests shall become district property.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

1834 Acquisition of materials and apparatus

35162 Power to sue, be sued, hold and convey property

41030 School district may invest surplus monies from bequest or gifts



41031 Special fund or account in county treasury

41032 Authority of school board to accept gift or bequest; investments; gift of land
requirements

41035 Advisory committee

41036 Function of advisory committee

41037 Rules and regulations

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Expenditures And Purchases

BP 3300
Business and Noninstructional Qperations

The Board of Trustees recognizes its fiduciary responsibility to oversee the prudent expenditure
of district funds. In order to best serve district interests, the Superintendent/Principal or
designee shall develop and maintain effective purchasing procedures that are consistent with
sound financial controls and that ensure the district receives maximum value for items
purchased. He/she shall ensure that records of expenditures and purchases are maintained in
accordance with law.

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)

(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Expending Authority

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may purchase supplies, materials, apparatus,
equipment, and services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111, beyond
which a competitive bidding process is required. The Board shall not recognize obligations
incurred contrary to Board policy and administrative regulations.

(cf. 3311 - Bids)
(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

The Board shall review all transactions entered into by the Superintendent/Principal or designee
on behalf of the Board every 60 days. (Education Code 17605)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may authorize an expenditure which exceeds the

budget classification allowance against which the expenditure is the proper charge only if an
amount sufficient to cover the purchase is available in the budget for transfer by the Board.

(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

District funds shall not be expended for the purchase of alcoholic beverages. (Education Code
32435)

Purchasing Procedures
Insofar as possible, goods and services purchased shall meet the needs of the person or

department ordering them at the lowest price consistent with standard purchasing practices.
Maintenance costs, replacement costs, and trade-in values shall be considered when determining



the most economical purchase price. When price, fitness, and quality are equal, recycled
products shall be preferred when procuring materials for use in the school.

(cf. 3314.2 - Revolving Funds)
(cf. 3440 - Inventories)
(cf. 3511.1 - Integrated Waste Management)

All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a
receipt. In order to eliminate the processing of numerous small purchase orders, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order system for
the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor. He/she shall ensure that the "open"
purchase order system details a maximum purchase amount, the types of items that can be
purchased under this order, the individuals authorized to approve purchases, and the expiration
date of the "open" order.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17604 Delegation of powers to agents; approval or ratification of contracts by governing board
17605 Delegation of authority to purchase supplies and equipment

32370-32376 Recycling paper

32435 Prohibited use of public funds, alcoholic beverages

35010 Control of district; prescription and enforcement of rules

35035 Powers and duties of superintendent

35160 Authority of governing boards

35250 Duty to keep certain records and reports

38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities

41010 Accounting system

41014 Requirement of budgetary accounting

GOVERNMENT CODE

4330-4334 California made materials

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

3410 U.S. produce and processed foods

20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Maximizing School Board Governance: Fiscal Accountability, 2006

WEB SITES

CSBA, Financial Services: http://www.csba.org/fs

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD

Board Policy
Bids

BP 3311
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Trustees is committed to promoting public accountability and ensuring prudent use
of public funds. In leasing or purchasing equipment, materials, supplies, or services for the
district and when contracting for public projects involving district facilities, the Board shall
explore lawful opportunities to obtain the greatest possible value for its expenditure of public
funds. When required by law, or if the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the
district, such leases and purchases shall be made using competitive bidding.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish comprehensive bidding procedures for
the district in accordance with law. The procedures shall include a process for advertising bids,
instructions and timelines for submitting and opening bids, and other relevant requirements.

No work, project, service, or purchase shall be split or separated into smaller work orders or
projects for the purpose of evading the legal requirements of Public Contract-Code -
20111-20118.4. (Public Contract Code 20116)

When calling for bids, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure that the bid
specification clearly describes in appropriate detail the quality, delivery, and service required and
includes all information which the district knows, or has in its possession, that is relevant to the
work to be performed or that may impact the cost of performing the work.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall develop the procedures to be used for rating
bidders for award of contracts which, by law or Board policy, require prequalification. The
procedures shall identify a uniform system for rating bidders and shall address the issues covered
by the standardized questionnaire and model guidelines developed by the Department of
Industrial Relations pursuant to Public Contract Code 20101.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Except as authorized by law and specified in the administrative regulation, contracts shall be let
to the lowest responsible bidder who shall give such security as the Board requires, or else all
bids shall be rejected. (Public Contract Code 20111)

When the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the district, the district may
piggyback onto the contract of another public agency or corporation to lease or purchase
equipment or supplies to the extent authorized by law. (Public Contract Code 20118)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
17070.10-17079.30 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act



17406 Lease-leaseback contract

17595 Purchase of supplies through Department of General Services
17602 Purchase of surplus property from federal agencies

38083 Purchase of perishable foodstuffs and seasonable commodities
38110-38120 Apparatus and supplies

39802 Transportation services

GOVERNMENT CODE

4217.10-4217.18 Energy conservation contracts

4330-4334 Preference for California-made materials

6252 Definition of public record

53060 Special services and advice

54201-54205 Purchase of supplies and equipment by local agencies
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

1102 Emergencies

2000-2002 Responsive bidders

3000-3010 Roofing projects

3400 Bids, specifications by brand or trade name not permitted

3410 United States produce and processed foods

6610 Bid visits

12200 Definitions, recycled goods, materials and supplies
20101-20103.7 Public construction projects, requirements for bidding
20103.8 Award of contracts

20107 Bidder's security

20111-20118.4 Contracting by school districts

20189 Bidder's security, earthquake relief
22002 Definition of public project =~
22030-22045 Alternative procedures for public projects (UPCCAA)

22050 Alternative emergency procedures

22152 Recycled product procurement

COURT DECISIONS

Los Angeles Unified School District v. Great American Insurance Co., (2010) 49 Cal.4th 739
Great West Contractors Inc. v. Irvine Unified School District, (2010) 187 Cal.App.4th 1425
Marshall v. Pasadena Unified School District, (2004) 119 Cal.App.4th 1241

Konica Business Machines v. Regents of the University of California, (1 988) 206 Cal.App.3d
449

City of Inglewood-Los Angeles County Civic Center Authority v. Superior Court, (1972) 7
Cal.3d 861

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 1 (2006)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http:// www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD

Administrative Regulation
Bids

AR 3311
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Adpvertised/Competitive Bids

The district shall advertise for competitive bids to let any public project contract involving an
expenditure of $15,000 or more. Public project means construction, reconstruction, erection,
alteration, renovation, improvement, painting, repainting, demolition, and repair work involving
a district owned, leased, or operated facility. (Public Contract Code 20111, 22002)

The district shall also seek competitive bids through advertisement for contracts exceeding the
amount specified in law, as annually adjusted by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, for
any of the following: (Public Contract Code 20111)

1. The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the
district
2. Services, not including construction services or special services and advice in accounting,

financial, legal, or administrative matters
3. Repairs that are not a public project, including maintenance

Maintenance means routine, recurring, and usual work for preserving, protecting, and keeping a
district facility operating in a safe, efficient, and continually usable condition for the intended
purpose for which it was designed, improved, constructed, altered, or repaired. Maintenance
includes, but is not limited to, carpentry, electrical, plumbing, glazing, and other craft work
designed to preserve the facility, as well as repairs, cleaning, and other operations on machinery
and other permanently attached equipment, but does not include painting, repainting, or
decorating other than touchup, or among other types of work, janitorial or custodial services and
protection provided by security forces. (Public Contract Code 20115)

Instructions and Procedures for Advertised Bids

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall call for bids by placing a notice at least once a
week for two weeks in a local newspaper of general circulation published in the district, or if no
such newspaper exists, then in some newspaper of general circulation circulated in the county.
The Superintendent/Principal or designee also may post the notice on the district's web site or
through an electronic portal. The notice shall state the work to be done or materials or supplies
to be furnished and the time and place and web site where bids will be opened. The district may
accept a bid that has been submitted electronically or on paper. (Public Contract Code 20112)



(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

The notice shall contain the time, date, and location of any mandatory prebid conference, site
visit, or meeting. The notice shall also detail when and where project documents, including the
final plan and specifications, are available. Any such mandatory visit or meeting shall occur not
less than five calendar days after the publication of the initial notice. (Public Contract Code

6610)

Bid instructions and specifications shall include the following requirements and information:

1. All bidders shall certify the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer
materials in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold. (Public Contract Code
22152)

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)

2 All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover and shall be
accompanied by one of the following forms of bidder's security: (Public Contract Code 20107,
20111)

a. Cash

b. A cashier's check made payable to the district

c. A certified check made payable to the district

d. A bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety insurer and made payable to the district

The security of unsuccessful bidders shall be returned in a reasonable period of time, but in no
event later than 60 days after the bid is awarded. (Public Contract Code 20111)

Bk When a standardized proposal form is provided by the district, bids not presented on the
standard form shall be disregarded. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

4. Bids shall not be accepted after the advertised bid opening time, regardless of whether the
bids are actually opened at that time. (Public Contract Code 20112)

5. When two or more identical lowest or highest bids are received, the Board of Trustees
may determine by lot which bid shall be accepted. (Public Contract Code 20117)

6. If the district requires that the bid include prices for items that may be added to or
deducted from the scope of work in the contract, the bid solicitation shall specify which one of
the following methods will be used to determine the lowest bid. In the absence of such a
specification, only the method provided in item #a below shall be used. (Public Contract Code

20103.8)



a. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract without
consideration of the prices on the additive or deductive items.

b. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those
additive or deductive items that were specifically identified in the bid solicitation as being used
for the purpose of determining the lowest bid price.

C. The lowest bid shall be the lowest total of the bid prices on the base contract and those
additive or deductive items that, when taken in order from a specifically identified list of those
items in the solicitation, and added to or subtracted from the base contract, are less than or equal
to a funding amount publicly disclosed by the district before the first bid is opened.

The lowest bid shall be determined in a manner that prevents any information that would identify
any of the bidders or proposed subcontractors or suppliers from being revealed to the district
before the ranking of all bidders from lowest to highest has been determined. (Public Contract
Code 20103.8)

7. Any subsequent change or alteration of a contract shall be governed by the provisions of
Public Contract Code 20118.4.

8. After being opened, all submitted .bids become public records pursuant to Government
Code 6252 and shall be made available for public review pursuant to law, Board policy, and
administrative regulation.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

0. When a bid is disqualified as nonresponsive based on district investigation or other
information not obtained from the submitted bid, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall
notify the bidder and give him/her an opportunity to respond to the information.

Prequalification Procedure

When required by law or the Board, each prospective bidder shall complete and submit a
standardized questionnaire and financial statement. For this purpose, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide a standardized proposal form which requires a
complete statement of the bidder's financial ability and experience in performing public works.
The bidder's information shall be verified under oath in the manner in which civil law pleadings
are verified. The questionnaires and financial statements shall not be public records and shall
not be open to public inspection. (Public Contract Code 20111.5,20111.6)

Prospective bidders shall submit the questionnaire and financial statement at least five days
before the date fixed for public opening of sealed bids. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish a uniform system for rating bidders on
the basis of completed questionnaires and financial statements in order to determine the size of



contracts on which each bidder is qualified to bid. Bidders must be prequalified by the district
at least one day before the fixed bid-opening date. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

The district may establish a procedure for prequalifying bidders on a quarterly basis and may
authorize that prequalification be considered valid for up to one calendar year following the date
of the initial prequalification. (Public Contract Code 20111.5)

Award of Contract

The district shall award each contract to the lowest responsible bidder except in the following
circumstances:

I When the contract is for the procurement and/or maintenance of electronic data
processing systems and supporting software, in which case the Board may contract with any one
of the three lowest responsible bidders (Public Contract Code 20118.1)

2. For any transportation service contract involving an expenditure of more than $10,000,
which the Board contemplates may be made with a person or corporation other than a common
carrier, municipally owned transit system, or a parent/guardian of students who are to be
transported, in which case the Board may contract with other than the lowest bidder (Education

Code 39802)

3l When the contract is one for which the Board has established goals and requirements
relating to participation of minority, women, disabled veteran, or small business enterprises in
accordance with Public Contract Code 2000-2002, in which case the Board may contract with
the lowest responsible bidder who complies or makes a good faith effort to comply with the
goals and requirements (Public Contract Code 2000-2002)

Protests by Bidders

A bidder may protest a bid award if he/she believes that the award is not in compliance with law,
Board policy, or the bid specification. A protest must be filed in writing with the
Superintendent/Principal or designee within five working days after receipt of notification of the
contract award and shall include all documents supporting or justifying the protest. A bidder's
failure to file the protest documents in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of his/her right
to protest the award of the contract.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall review the documents submitted with the bidder's
claims and render a decision in writing within 30 working days. The Superintendent/Principal
or designee may also convene a meeting with the bidder in order to attempt to resolve the
problem.

The bidder may appeal the Superintendent/Principal or designee's decision to the Board. The
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide reasonable notice to the bidder of the date and
time for Board consideration of the protest. The Board's decision shall be final.



Alternative Bid Procedures for Technological Supplies and Equipment

Rather than seek competitive bids, the Board may use competitive negotiation when it makes a
finding that a district procurement is for computers, software, telecommunications equipment,
microwave equipment, or other related electronic equipment and apparatus. Competitive
negotiation shall not be used to contract for construction or for the procurement of any product
that is available in substantial quantities to the general public. (Public Contract Code 20118.2)

The competitive negotiation process shall include, but not be limited to, the following
requirements: (Public Contract Code 20118.2)

1. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall prepare a request for proposals (RFP) that
shall be submitted to an adequate number of qualified sources, as determined by the district, to
permit reasonable competition consistent with the nature and requirement of the procurement.

2. Notice of the RFP shall be published at least twice in a newspaper of general circulation,
at least 10 days before the date for receipt of the proposals.

3. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall make every effort to generate the
maximum feasible number of proposals from qualified sources and shall make a finding to that
effect before proceeding to negotiate if only a single response to the RFP is received.

4. The RFP shall identify all significant evaluation factors, including price, and their relative
importance. '
5. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall provide reasonable procedures for the

technical evaluation of the RFPs received, the identification of qualified sources, and the
selection for the award of the contract.

6. The Board shall award the contract to the qualified bidder whose proposal meets the
evaluation standards and will be most advantageous to the district with price and all other factors
considered.

7. If the Board does not award the contract to the bidder whose proposal contains the lowest
price, then the Board shall make a finding setting forth the basis for the award.

8. The Board, at its discretion, may reject all proposals and request new RFPs.

9. Provisions in any contract concerning utilization of small business enterprises that are in
accordance with the RFP shall not be subject to negotiation with the successful proposer.

Sole Sourcing

In any contract for the construction, alteration, or repair of school facilities, the
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall not draft the bid specification in a manner that:

(Public Contract Code 3400)



1. Directly or indirectly limits bidding to any one specific concern

2 Calls for a designated material, product, thing, or service by a specific brand or trade
name, unless the specification is followed by the words "or equal," so that bidders may furnish
any equal material, product, thing, or service

In any such case, the bid specification shall provide a time period, before and/or after the
award of the contract, for the contractor to submit data substantiating the request for substituting
the designated material, product, thing, or service. If no such time period is specified, the
contractor may submit the data within 35 days after the award of the contract.

When the bid is for a roof project, a material, product, thing, or service is considered "equal" to
that designated if it is equal in quality, durability, design, and appearance; will perform the
intended function equally well; and conforms substantially to the detailed requirements in the bid
specification. (Public Contract Code 3002)

However, the Superintendent/Principal or designee may designate a specific material, product,
thing, or service by brand or trade name (sole sourcing), if the Board has made a finding,
described in the invitation for bids or RFP, that a particular material, product, thing, or service is
designated for any of the following purposes: (Public Contract Code 3400)

1. To conduct a field test or experiment to determine its suitability for future use

2. To match others in use on a particular public improvement that has been completed or is
in the course of completion

3. To obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source

4. To respond to the Board's declaration of an emergency, as long as the declaration has
been approved by four-fifths of the Board when issuing the invitation for bid or RFP

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Bids Not Required

Without advertising for bids and upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district,
the Board may authorize another public corporation or agency, by contract, lease, requisition, or
purchase order, to lease data-processing equipment or to purchase materials, supplies,
equipment, automotive vehicles, tractors, and other personal property for the district in the
manner that the other public corporation or agency is authorized to make the leases or purchases
from a vendor ("piggyback"). Alternatively, if the public corporation or agency has an existing
contract with a vendor for the lease or purchase of personal property, the district may authorize
the lease or purchase of personal property directly from the vendor and make payments under the
same terms that are available to the public corporation or agency under the contract. (Public
Contract Code 20118)



(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)

In addition, upon a determination that it is in the best interest of the district and without
advertising for bids, the Board may lease currently owned district property to any person, firm,
or corporation for a minimum of $1 per year, as long the lease requires the person, firm, or
corporation to construct a building or buildings on the property for the district's use during the
lease and the property and building(s) will vest in the district at the expiration of the lease
("lease-leaseback"). (Education Code 17406)

(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property)

Without advertising for bids, the Board may enter into an energy service contract and any related
facility ground lease, when it determines that the terms of the contract and lease are in

the best interest of the district. The Board's determination shall be made at a regularly
scheduled public hearing of which notice is given to the public at least two weeks in advance and
shall be based on cost comparison findings specified in Government Code 4217.12.

(Government Code 4217.12)

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)
(cf. 3511 - Energy and Water Management)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Supplementary textbooks, library books, educational films, audiovisual materials, test materials,
workbooks, instructional computer software packages, or periodicals may be purchased in any
amount without taking estimates or advertising for bids. (Public Contract Code 20118.3)

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Perishable foodstuffs and seasonal commodities needed in the operations of the cafeteria may be
purchased through bid or on the open market. (Education Code 38083)

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)

In an emergency when any repairs, alterations, work, or improvement to any school facility is
necessary to permit the continuance of existing school classes or to avoid danger to life or
property, the Board may, by unanimous vote and with the approval of the County Superintendent
of Schools, contract for labor and materials or supplies without advertising for or inviting bids or
may authorize the use of day labor or force account for the emergency purpose. (Public
Contract Code 20113)

(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)



Bids shall not be required for day labor under circumstances specified in Public Contract Code
20114. Day labor shall include the use of maintenance personnel employed on a permanent or
temporary basis. (Public Contract Code 20114)

The district may purchase any surplus property from the federal government or any of its
agencies in any quantity needed for the operation of the school without taking estimates or
advertising for bids. (Education Code 17602)

Regulation = KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: March 13, 2019 Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Contracts

BP 3312
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Whenever state law invests the Board of Trustees with the power to enter into contracts on behalf
of the district, the Board may, by a majority vote, delegate this power to the
Superintendent/Principal or designee. To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation
against the district, all contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the Board. (Education Code

17604)

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

All contracts between the district and outside agencies shall conform to standards required by
law and shall be prepared under the direction of the Superintendent/Principal or designee.

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract) - - -
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

When required by law, contracts and subcontracts made by the district for public works or for
goods or services shall contain a nondiscrimination clause prohibiting discrimination by
contractors or subcontractors. The nondiscrimination clause shall contain a provision requiring
contractors and subcontractors to give written notice of their obligations to labor organizations
with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. (Government Code 12990)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activiti€s)

The district shall not enter into a contract that prohibits a school employee from disparaging the
goods or services of the contracting party. (Education Code 35182.5)

Contracts for Non-Nutritious Foods or Beverages
Effective July 1, 2007, the district or a district school shall not enter into or renew a contract for
the sale of foods that do not meet the nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431 or

49431.2 unless the contract specifies that such sales will occur later than one-half hour after the
end of the school day and/or off school premises. (Education Code 49431, 49431.2)

(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)



In accordance with the dates specified in law, the district or a district school shall not enter into
or renew a contract for the sale of beverages that do not meet the nutritional standards in
Education Code 49431.5 unless the contract specifies that such sales will occur later than
one-half hour after the end of the school day and/or off school premises.

Before the district or a district school enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or
nonexclusive advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or
non-nutritious food as defined in law, the Board shall ensure that the district has sufficient
internal controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that funds raised as
a result of the contract benefit public education. (Education Code 35182.5)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall develop the district's internal control procedures
to protect the integrity of public funds. Such internal controls may include but not be limited to
the following:

1. Control procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, at the same
time, safeguard the assets, financial resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for
handling money or property. Control systems shall be systematically evaluated and revised to
keep pace with the changing responsibilities of management.

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3460 - F ina_mcial Reports and Accountability)

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or product at the school site.
The contract shall specify that the vendor stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting,
along with a check, for district proceeds directly to the control office.

In addition, the contract may specify whether contractor logos are permitted on district facilities,
including but not limited to scoreboards and other equipment. If such logos are permitted, the
contractor shall present the equipment to the Board as a gift. The gift may be accepted by the
Board in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.

(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequest)
To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and students:
il. The Superintendent/Principal or designee may involve parents/guardians, students, staff,

and interested community members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including
recommendations as to how the funds will be spent in a manner that benefits public education.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific programs and
activities that will be funded by the proceeds of the contract and consider how the contract
reflects the district's vision and goals.



(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly basis, to the
Superintendent/Principal or designee the number of food items or beverages sold within the
district and the amount of money raised by the sales. The Superintendent/Principal or designee
shall report these amounts to the Board on a regular basis.

4. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure that the contract does not limit the
ability of student and parent organizations to plan and operate fund-raising activities.

(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students)

The contract shall be entered into on a competitive bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code
20111 or through the issuance of a Request for Proposal. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

The Board shall not enter into or renew a contract that grants exclusive or nonexclusive
advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious beverages, or non-nutritious food
until parents/guardians, students, and members of the public have had an opportunity to
comment on the contract at a public hearing held during a regularly scheduled board meeting or
as otherwise authorized by Education Code 35182.5. The Board shall clearly, and in a manner
recognizable to the general public, identify in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the

meeting. (Education Code 35182.5)

The public hearing shall include but not be limited to a discussion of the nutritional value of food
and beverages sold within the district; the availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in
school meals and snacks, including locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, sugar,

and additives in the food and beverages discussed; and barriers to student participation in school
breakfast and lunch programs. (Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a confidentiality clause that
would prevent the district or a district school from making any part of the contract public.
(Education Code 35182.5)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
Contracts for Electronic Products or Services

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services that requires the



dissemination of advertising to students, unless the Board: (Education Code 35182.5)
1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be an integral
component of the education of students.

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the electronic product or service
unless it contracts to permit dissemination of advertising to students.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

4, As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to parents/guardians, provides
written notice that the advertising will be used in the classroom or other learning center.

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that their child not be
exposed to the program that contains the advertising. Any request shall be honored for the
school year in which it is submitted, or longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the
parents/guardians at any time.

Contracts/Agreements/Partnerships with Non-Governmental Organizations (NGO)

Superintendent shall not enter into a contract, partnership, or agreement with any NGO until the
Superintendent/designee has completed the following:

1. Verifies that a problem exists in the district that can best be ameliorated by contracting
with a NGO.

To determine if such a problem exists, the Superintendent may use any means necessary to
investigate.

2. Substantiates that the district cannot solve the problem internally.

In many instances, the district is either in the process of mitigating the problem or has the ability
to do so. If this is the case, outside help is not required. The Superintendent will determine
whether the district has the capability and capacity to independently address the problem.

3. The NGO being considered is the "best fit" for the district
Before the district will contract with any NGO, the Superintendent/Principal or designee will

insure that the requesting NGO can work well with the district and is capable of completing the
task. The Superintendent/Principal or designee will at a minimum examine the following:



a. Articles of Incorporation of the NGO

The Proposed project must fall within the articles of incorporation of the NGO and the NGO
must be able to show that they have the expertise and capacity (manpower) to accomplish the
project.

b. Division of funds for Administration Costs and Project Costs.
NGO's who expend less than 80 percent on direct services.
c. Qualifications of the Proposed Project Workers.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee will insure that all personnel hired, or NGO employees
responsible for carrying out services pursuant to the agreement with the NGO meet all statutory
requirements and have the appropriate training/credentials and or licenses and experience for the

position.

d. Proven Ability of the NGO to successfully complete the project.
The Superintendent/Principal or designee will evaluate the NGO's past project performance and

effectiveness.
e. Appropriateness of Proposal

The Superintendent/Principal or designee will examine the proposing NGO's solution to insure it
is tailored to the unique characteristics of the district's needs.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex
14505 Provisions required in contracts for audits

17595-17606 Contracts

35182.5 Contract prohibitions

45103.5 Contracts for management consulting service related to food service
49431-49431.5 Nutritional standards

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

685.010 Rate of interest

" GOVERNMENT CODE

12990 Nondiscrimination and compliance employment programs
53260 Contract provision re maximum cash settlement

53262 Ratification of contracts with administrative officers
LABOR CODE

1775 Penalties for violations

1810-1813 Working hours



PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

4100-4114 Subletting and subcontracting fair practices

7104 Contracts for excavations; discovery of hazardous waste

7106 Noncollusion affidavit

20111 Contracts over $50,000; contracts for construction; award to lowest responsible bidder
20104.50 Construction Progress Payments

22300 Performance retentions

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1681-1688 Title IX, discrimination

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2005
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD

Administrative Regulation
Fire Drills And Fires

AR 3516.1
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Fire Drills

The Superintendent shall cause the fire alarm signal to be sounded at least once every month.
(Education Code 32001)

The Superintendent shall also hold fire drills at least once a month at the elementary level, four
times every school year at the intermediate level, and not less than twice every school year at the
secondary level. (Education Code 32001)

L. The Superintendent shall notify staff as to the schedule for fire drills.

2 Whenever a fire drill is held, all students, teachers and other employees shall be directed
to leave the building. (5 CCR 550)

2 Teachers shall ascertain that no student remains in the building.

4, Teachers shall be prepared to select alternate exits and shall direct their classes to these
exits whenever the designated escape route is blocked.

5. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall keep a record of each fire drill conducted.

Fires
When a fire is discovered in any part of the school, the following actions shall be taken:

1. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall sound fire signals, unless the school
and/or building is equipped with an automatic fire detection and alarm system. (Education Code
32001)

2 The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall call 911.

8l All persons shall be directed to leave the building and shall proceed outside to designated
assembly areas.

4. Staff shall give students clear direction and supervision and help maintain a calm and
orderly response.



Sk In outside assembly areas, teachers shall take roll, report missing students, and provide
assistance to any injured students.

6. In outside assembly areas, the Superintendent, designee and/or each department head
shall account for their staff, report missing staff, and provide assistance to any injured staff.

7. If the fire is extensive, students shall be taken to an alternate location for protective
custody until parents/guardians can pick them up or until they can be safely transported to their
homes.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17074.50-17074.56 Automatic fire detection, alarm and sprinkler systems
32001 Uniform fire signals

32040 Duty to equip school with first aid kit

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

550 Fire drills

Regulation = KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: March 13,2019 Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD

Administrative Regulation
Earthquake Emergency Procedure System

AR 3516.3
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Earthquake Preparedness

Earthquake emergency procedures shall be established in every school building having an
occupant capacity of 50 or more students, or more than one classroom, and shall be incorporated
into the comprehensive school safety plan. (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

Earthquake emergency procedures shall be aligned with the Standardized Emergency
Management System and the National Incident Management System. (Government Code 8607;
19 CCR 2400-2450)

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Eart’hquake emergency procedures shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:
(Education Code 32282)

L. A school building disaster plan, ready for implementation at any time, for maintaining the
safety and care of students and staff

2. A drop procedure whereby each student and staff member takes cover under a table or
desk, dropping to his/her knees, with the head protected by the arms and the back to the windows

Drop procedures shall be practiced at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and at
least once each semester in secondary schools.

3. Protective measures to be taken before, during, and following an earthquake

4, A program to ensure that students and staff are aware of and properly trained in the
earthquake emergency procedure system

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may work with the California Office of Emergency
Services and the Seismic Safety Commission to develop and establish the earthquake emergency



procedures. (Education Code 32282)

Earthquake emergency procedures shall outline the roles and responsibilities of students and staff
during and after an earthquake.

Staff and students shall be informed of the dangers to expect in an earthquake and procedures to
be followed. Students shall be instructed to remain silent and follow directions given by staff in
such an emergency. Staff and students also shall be taught safety precautions to take if they are
in the open or on the way to or from school when an earthquake occurs.

Earthquake emergency procedures shall designate outside areas and alternative areas, which may
include areas off campus if necessary, in which students will assemble following evacuation. In
designating such areas, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall consider potential
post-earthquake hazards outside school buildings including, but not limited to, power lines, trees,
covered walkways, chain link fences that may be an electric shock hazard, and areas near
buildings that may have debris.

Earthquake emergency procedures shall designate evacuation routes and alternative routes that
avoid areas with potential hazards to the extent possible. The needs of students with disabilities
shall be considered when planning evacuation routes.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall identify potential earthquake hazards in
classrooms and other district facilities. Potential hazards may include, but are not limited to,
areas where the main gas supply or electric current enters the building, suspended ceilings,
pendant light fixtures, large windows, stairwells, science laboratories, storage areas for
hazardous materials, shop areas, and unsecured furniture and equipment. To the extent possible,
such shall be minimized by securing equipment and furnishings and removing heavy objects
from high shelves.

Earthquake While Indoors at School

When an earthquake occurs, the following actions shall be taken inside buildings and
classrooms:

L. Staff shall have students perform the drop procedure. Students should stay in the drop
position until the emergency is over or until further instructions are given.

2. In laboratories, burners should be extinguished if possible before taking cover.

3. As soon as possible, staff shall move students away from windows, shelves, and heavy

objects and furniture that may fall.

4. After the earthquake, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall determine whether
planned evacuation routes and assembly areas are safe and shall communicate with teachers and
other staff.



51 When directed by the Superintendent/Principal or designee to evacuate, or if classrooms
or other facilities present dangerous hazards that require immediate evacuation, staff shall
account for all students under their supervision and have the students evacuate the building in an
orderly manner.

Earthquake While Outdoors on School Grounds

When an earthquake occurs, the following actions shall be taken by staff or other persons in
authority who are outdoors on school grounds:

1. Staff shall direct students to walk away from buildings, trees, overhead power lines,
power poles, or exposed wires.

2 Staff shall have students perform the drop procedure.

8l Staff shall have students stay in the open until the earthquake is over or until further
directions are given.

Earthquake While on the Bus
If students are on the school bus when an earthquake occurs, the bus driver shall take proper
precautions to ensure student safety. The driver shall pull to the side of the road, away from any

outside hazards if possible, and turn off the ignition. As soon as possible, the driver shall
contact the Superintendent/Principal or designee for instructions before proceeding on the route.

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

Subsequent Emergency Procedures

After the earthquake has subsided, the following actions shall be taken:
1. Staff shall extinguish small fires if possible.

2. Staff shall provide assistance to any injured students, take roll, and report missing
students to the Superintendent/Principal or designee.

S Staff and students shall not light any stoves or burners until the area is declared safe.

4, All buildings shall be inspected for water and gas leaks, electrical breakages, and large
cracks or earth slippage affecting buildings.

. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall post staff at a safe distance from all
building entrances and instruct staff and students to not reenter until the buildings are declared

safe,

6. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall request assistance as needed from the



county or city civil defense office, fire and police departments, city and county building
inspectors, and utility companies and shall confer with them regarding the advisability of closing
the school.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

32280-32289 School safety plans

GOVERNMENT CODE

3100 Public employees as disaster service workers

8607 Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS)
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19

2400-2450 Standardized Emergency Management System

Management Resources:

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLICATIONS

Guidebook for Developing a School Earthquake Safety Program, 1990

OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES PUBLICATIONS

The ABCs of Post-Earthquake Evacuation: A Checklist for School Administrators and F aculty
Guide and Checklist for Nonstructural Earthquake Hazards in California Schools, January 2003
School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

American Red Cross: http://www.redcross.org

California Office of Emergency Services: http://www.oes.ca.gov

California Seismic Safety Commission: http://www.seismic.ca.gov

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): http://www.fema.gov/hazards/earthquakes
National Incident Management System (NIMS): http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims

Regulation =~ KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: March 13,2019 Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Emergency Schedules

BP 3516.5
Business and Noninstructional Operations

In order to provide for the safety of students and staff, the Board of Trustees authorizes the
Superintendent/Principal or designee to close the school, to change the regular school day
schedule, or to take any necessary action when adverse weather conditions or other emergencies
warrant.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety)
(cf. 5142 - Safety)

(cf. 6112 - School Day)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish a system for informing students and
parents/guardians when school buses are not operating or when the school day schedule is
changed or the school is closed.

(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers)
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

In the event that students arrive at school when the school day schedule changes or the schedule
changes aftet school has begun, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure that
supervision is provided in accordance with the procedures specified in the district's emergency
and disaster preparedness plan.

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf. 3516.1 - Fire Drills and Fires)

(cf. 3516.2 - Bomb Threats)

(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee may provide a means to compensate for lost
instructional time later during the year. Students and parents/guardians shall receive timely
advanced notice of any resulting changes in the school calendar or school day schedule.

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

41422 Schools not maintained for 175 days

46010 Total days of attendance

46100-46192 Attendance; maximum credit; minimum day
46390 Calculation of ADA in emergency

46392 Decreased attendance in emergency situation
VEHICLE CODE

34501.6 School buses; reduced visibility

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California






Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Facilities Inspection

BP 3517
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Trustees recognizes that the condition of school facilities may have an impact on
safety, student achievement, and employee morale and desires to provide school facilities that
are safe, clean, and functional, as defined in Fducation Code 17002.

(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3111 - Deferred Maintenance Funds)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall develop a facilities inspection and maintenance
program to ensure that school facilities are maintained in good repair in accordance with law.
At a minimum, the program shall analyze those facility conditions specified on the facilities
inspection tool developed by the Office of Public School Construction, including the following:

1. Gas Leaks: Gas systems and pipes appear safe, functional, and free of leaks.

2 Mechanical Systems: Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems as applicable
are functional and unobstructed.

3. Windows/Doors/Gates/Fences (interior and exterior): Conditions that pose a safety
and/or security risk are not evident.

4. Interior Surfaces (floors, ceilings, walls, and window casings): Interior surfaces appear
to be clean, safe, and functional.

5. Hazardous Materials (interior and exterior): There does not appear to be evidence of
hazardous materials that may pose a threat to students or staff,

6. Structural Damage: There does not appear to be structural damage that could create
hazardous or uninhabitable conditions.

7. Fire Safety: The fire equipment and emergency systems appear to be functioning
properly.
8. Electrical (interior and exterior): There is no evidence that any portion of the school has

a power failure and electrical systems, components, and equipment appear to be working
properly.

9, Pest/Vermin Infestation: Pest or vermin infestation is not evident.

10. Drinking Fountains (inside and outside): Drinking fountains appear to be accessible and
functioning as intended.



11. Restrooms: Restrooms appear to be accessible duri ng school hours, are clean,
functional, and in compliance with Education Code 35292.5 (operational and supplied).

12. Sewers: Sewer line stoppage is not evident.

13. " Roofs (observed from the ground, inside/outside the building): Roof system appears to
be functioning properly.

14.  Playground/School Grounds: The playground equipment and school grounds appear to
be clean, safe, and functional.

L5 Overall Cleanliness: School grounds, buildings, common areas, and individual rooms
appear to be cleaned regularly.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure that any necessary repairs identified

during the inspection are made in a timely and expeditious manner. The Superintendent/Principal
or designee shall provide the Board with regular reports regarding the district's facility inspection
program and updates of any visits to the district school by the County Superintendent of Schools.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

1240 County superintendent of schools, duties

17002 Definitions

17070.10-17077.10 Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998
17565-17591 Property maintenance and control, especially:

17584 Deferred naintenarice o T
17592.72  Urgent or emergency repairs, School F acility Emergency Repair Account
33126 School accountability report card

35186 Williams uniform complaint procedure

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

1859.300-1859.330 Emergency Repair Program

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Williams Settlement and the Emergency Repair Program, Policy Brief, January 2008
COALITION OF ADEQUATE SCHOOL HOUSING PUBLICATIONS

Facility Inspection Tool Guidebook, February 2008

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org
California Department of Education, Williams Case: http://'www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc/index.asp
Coalition of Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org

State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Risk Management/Insurance

BP 3530
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Trustees strongly supports a risk management program that protects district
resources and promotes the safety of students, staff and the public.

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall establish a risk management program that uses
effective safety and loss control practices. The district shall strive to keep its liability at a
minimum and its insurance premiums as low as possible while maintaining adequate protection.
To determine the most economical means of insuring the district consistent with required
services, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall annually review the district's options for
obtaining coverage, including qualified insurance agents, a joint powers agency, self-insurance
or a combination of these means.

The Board reserves the right to remove an insurance agent-of-record or a participating agent
whenever, in the judgment of the Board, such action becomes desirable for the best interests of

the district. D

To attempt to minimize the district's exposure to liability, the Board shall adopt clear policies
related to discrimination, harassment, safety procedures, and the timely handling of claims. The
Superintendent/Principal or designee shall ensure that these policies and related procedures are
enforced fairly and consistently.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11- Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 4132/4232/4332- Publication or Creation of Materials)
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries)

(cf. 4158/4258/4358- Employee Security)

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall report to the Board once a year on the district's
risk management activities.



Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

17029.5 Contract funding; board liability

17565-17592 Board duties re property maintenance and control
32350 Liability on equipment loaned to district

35162 Power to sue, be sued, hold and convey property
35200-35214 Liabilities, especially:

35208 Liability insurance

35211 Driver training civil liability insurance

35213 Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of personal property
35214 Liability self-insurance

35331 Medical or hospital service for students on field trip
39837 Transportation of pupils to places of summer employment
41021 Requirement for employees' indemnity bonds

44873 Qualifications for physician (liability coverage)
49470-49474 District medical services and insurance
GOVERNMENT CODE

820.9 Board members not vicariously liable for injuries caused by district
989-991.2 Local public entity insurance

LABOR CODE

3200-4855 Workers' compensation

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD

Administrative Regulation
Risk Management/Insurance

AR 3530
Business and Noninstructional Operations
Risk Management

The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall take action to:

1. Identify the risks inherent in the operation of district programs

2 Assess the above risks and keep records of accidents, losses and damage

gl Mitigate risks through loss control and safety-related activities

4, Determine the extent to which risks should be assumed by the district or covered by the

purchase of insurance or pooling with other districts

Employees are expected to take reasonable precautions for the-care and safety of the school
equipment with which they have been entrusted. Employees may be held responsible for
recurring damage or losses that occur due to their negligence or lack of supervision.
Responsibilities related to safety and loss control shall be included in employee job descriptions.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

(cf. 3430 - Investing)

(cf. 3440 - Inventories)

(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)

(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips)

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.43 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers)
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)
(cf. 4157/4257/4357- Employee Safety)

(cf. 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check)

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing)



(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5142 - Safety)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

Insurance

Insurance coverage shall include, but may not be limited to:

1. Liability insurance (Education Code 35200-35214)

PA Fire insurance for buildings, equipment and vehicles (Education Code 17565)
£ Workers' compensation insurance (Labor Code 3700)

4, Fidelity bond insurance (Education Code 41021)

A suitable bond indemnifying the district against loss shall be purchased for employees
responsible for handling district funds and may be purchased for employees responsible for
handling district property. The district shall bear the cost of this bonding. (Education Code
41021)

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits)

(cf. 4156.3/4256.3/4356.3 - Employee Property Reimbursement)
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries)

(cf. 5143 - Insurance)

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection)

Regulation = KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: March 13,2019 Stewarts Point, California



Kashia ESD
Board Policy

Consultants

BP 3600
Business and Noninstructional Operations

The Board of Trustees authorizes the use of consultants to provide expert professional advice or
specialized technical or training services which are not needed on a continuing basis and which
cannot be provided by district staff because of limitations of time, experience or knowledge.
Individuals, firms or organizations employed as consultants may assist management with
decisions and/or project development related to financial, economic, accounting, engineering,
legal, administrative, instructional or other matters.

As part of the contract process, the Superintendent/Principal or designee shall determine, in
accordance with Internal Revenue Service guidelines, that the consultant is properly classified as
an independent contractor. District employees who perform extra-duty consultant services shall
not be retained as independent contractors. They shall be considered employees for all
purposes, even if the additional services are not related to their regular duties.

All consultant contracts shall be brought to the Board for approval.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

The district shall not contract for consulting services that can be performed without charge by a
public agency or official unless these services are unavailable from the public source for reasons
beyond the district's control.

All qualified firms or resource persons shall be accorded equal opportunity for consultant
contracts regardless of race, creed, color, gender, national or ethnic origin, age or disability.

(cf. 3311 - Bids)
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Independent contractors applying for a consultant contract shall submit a written conflict of
interest statement disclosing financial interests as determined necessary by the
Superintendent/Principal or designee, depending on the range of duties to be performed by the
consultant. The Superintendent/Principal or designee shall consider this statement when
deciding whether to recommend the consultant's employment.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

When employees of a public university, county office of education or other public agency serve



as consultant or resource persons for the district, they shall certify as part of the consultant
agreement that they will not receive salary or remuneration other than vacation pay from any
other public agency for the specific days when they work for this district.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

10400-10407 Cooperative improvement programs

17596 Limit on continuing contracts

35010 Control of districts; prescription and enforcement of rules
35172(a) Promotional activities

35204 Contract with attorney

44925 Part-time readers employed as independent contractors

45103 Classified service in districts not incorporating the merit system
45103.5 Contracts for food service consulting services

45134-45135 Employment of retired classified employee

45256 Merit system districts; classified service; positions established for professional experts
on a temporary basis

GOVERNMENT CODE

53060 Contract for special services and advice

Management Resources: o
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PUBLICATIONS
15-A  Employer's Supplemental Tax Guide

Policy KASHIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: March 13,2019  Stewarts Point, California



